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The Rothschild Group

Rothschild 15 one of the world's largest Independent financial adwsory groups, employing approximately 2 800 people in 40 countries
around the world We provide strategic M&A, wealth management and fundrasing adwvice and seraces to governments, companies and
tndividuals worldwide

North America Europe and The Middle East
Calgary Abu Dhab Coha Lisben Prague
Houston Amsterdam Cubai London Sofia
Mexico City Athens Frankfurt Luxembourg Stockholm
New York Barcelona Geneva Madnd Tel Aviv
Toronto Birmingharn Guernsey Manchester Warsaw
Washington Brussels Istanbul Milan Zurich
Bucharest Kiev Moscow
Budapest Leeds Pans
.d' o ‘h\.\r v k

South America | Africa Asia Pacific

Santiago Johannesburg Auckland Mumbai

Sao Paulo Beiying Seoul
Hano Shanghai
Hong Kong Singapore
Jakarta Sydney
Kuala Lumpur  Tokyo
Manila Wellington
Me!bourne
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Directors’ report and financial
staterments for the year ended 31 March 2013

Principal activities and
business review

Principal activities

N M Rathschild & Sons Limited (“NMR” or’ the Company' ) s
the main UK operating entity of the wider Rothschild Group
which 1s consolidated under Pans Orleans the French listed
parent company The Company and its subsichary undertakings’
(together “the Group') main actvities are

»  Global Financial Adwisory where Rothschild s business
prowides impartial, expert advice and execution services
to governments corporations, institutions and ndviduals
Alengside our UK adwvisory business, NMR owns 50% of
Rothschild Europe BV and 100% of Rothschild Australia
Limited The remaining 50% of Rothschild Europe BY 15
owned by Rothschild & Cie Banque, the Pans Orleans
Group's prinapal operating business in France

= Asgset Management, principally in the area of debt fund
management, managing a number of CLO leveraged debt
and mezzanine debt vehicles

= Specalist Finance where the Group's Banking business offers
services in private client banking, commercal lending, asset
finance and treasury This includes the prowision of asset
financing to companies and local authormes by NMR s Five
Arrows Leasing subsidianes The fegacy commerucial loan book
conunues to be managed down

The Company's head office 15 at New Court, St Swithin's Lane
London, EC4N BAL

Further information on the Rothschild and Paris Crleans
Groups can be found on the corporate websites
www rothschild com and wwaw pans-orleans com

Results overview

The consoldated profit for the year to 31 March 2013 of

£30 6m was an improvement an the prior year's £24 ém,
particularly so given the continued difficult market conditions
in the first half of the year The profit is also after exceptional
iImpairment provisions against available-for-sale equities (£7 9m)
and goodwill {£2 5m}

This improvement was mainly dniven by an increase in Global
Financial Advisory fee income of £36 Im alongside continued
control of costs The approach of prowviding impartial, creatve and
long term ideas and advice to clients across a range of products
and industry sectors coupled with our global presence, positions
the business well going forward | the year to 31 March 2013
Rothschild ranked éth globally for advisory income
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The debt fund management business 15 developing well with a
good performance from the Elgin Capital business acquired last
year and the successiu! first close of Oberon, a new leveraged
debt fund bringing funds under management in this business io
£1 4 billon These prowde a solid base to continue to build the
debt fund management business

There were also notable improvements in the Banking business
reslts where net interest iIncome increased alongside a stable
imparrment charge The business has further reduced the legacy
commercial lending book in the year The Five Arrows asset
finance business had another good year and continues to expand

Balance sheet

The year has seen further progress towards managing down
balance sheet nsks with total assets reduced by £125m to
£2,160m This 1s now half the sze of the balance sheet pre-crisis
in 2007 which dlustrates the significant sirategic steps taken to
de-risk the business The balance sheet reduction has focused
on managing off the legacy commercial lending book and this
year has seen a further fall in loans and advances 10 customers
and available-for-sale financial assets

Funding and hquidity

While reducing the legacy lending bocok the Group has ensured
that it retains a secure funding posiuon At the year-end 42% of
the balance sheet was held wrth the UK central bank or n short-
term advances to banks The launch during 2009 of Rothschild
Reserve, a fixed term retaill depasit offering to UK residents has
enabled the Group to retain a comfortable iquidity coverage
ratio well in excess of regulatory requirements

Capital and dividends

Owver the course of the year total equity has increased by
£11m after the payment of a £13m dwvidend The Group’s nsk
asset ratio at 3| March 2013 of 22 1% (31 March 2012 20 3%)
continues to be well above current regulatory requirements
While the implementation of the new “Basel 3" capital

regime over the coming years will significantly Increase capital
requirements, projections prepared as part of the Indmdual
Capnal Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) indicate that
the Group will maintain a comfortable surplus to the projected
regulatory requirements given our current understanding of the
rules The development of the new caprtal regime will continue
to be monitored closely alongside the business environment.



Report of the Directors

Governance and risk
management

The NMR Group is an integral part of the wader Pans Orleans
Group and as such the governance and nsk management
framework operates within the overall Pans Orleans Group
structure while ensuring the requirements of the NMR Group
are fully covered The key governance commitiees to which the
Board has delegated authonty are summanised on pagel |

In terms of risk managerment, the Chief Risk Officer co-ordinates
policy and promotes the development and mantenance of
effective procedures throughout the Group Alongside this, our
internal audrt team reviews the internal control framework and
reports its findings to the Auvdi Committee

The key nisks to which the Group s exposed continue to be
credit, market, iquidity, pension fund, regulatory reputational,
conduct and other operatonal risks These risks are closely
momitored and controlled as part of the overall nsk controls
and are taken account of in the Board's perodic assessmenit of
caprial and Iquidity adequacy For a business such as ours loss
of key personnel is a material risk which the Group seeks to
mitigate through training, career development and remuneration
polices

The finanoial nsk management objectives and policies of the
Company and the Group in respect of the use of financal
instruments together with analyses of exposures to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk are set out in note 2 to the
financial statements

Corporate and social
responsibility

The Group 15 committed to supporting the principle of equal
opportunities and opposes all forms of unlawiul or unfair
discrimination on the grounds of colour, race, nationalrty, ethnic
ongin gender marital status, disability, religion age or sexual
onentation The Group's aim s to recruit, train and promote the
best person for the job and to create a working environment

free from unlawful discrmination, victimisation and harassrment,
and in which all employees are treated with dignity and respect.

The Group 1s committed to supporting charties both in the
areas in which 1t operates and in the wider community The
Chanies Committee was establshed in 1975 1o consider the
hundreds of requests receved every year from chanties seeking
financiel support. The sum of £288,000 (2012 £544,000)

was charged aganst the profits of the Group during the

year in respect of gfts for charrtable purposes No political
contributions were made dunng the year (2012 £nil)

Typical beneficianes continue to include organisations
concerned with elderly people, heakthcare, social welfare
and education Reguests for support from staff in respect of
chartable causes with which they are associated, or have an
Involvernent, are actively encouraged

Rothschild in the Community

Through the Rothschild in the Community programme we
encourage our people to volunteer their tme for community
inrbatives that make a real difference to people’s lives In
2012/13 40% of NMR's London staff took part in our
volunteenng programme, giving 507 working days of time

Educauon

We work in partnership with three schools in economgally
deprived areas close to our offices Bow Boys School Old
Palace Pnmary School and Regent High School Our volunteers
paruopate In Iteracy support programmes, careers mentoning,
employabiity events work experence and provide support for
children in transition from primary to secondary school Through
all of this we aim to develop students’ confidence, broaden

their horizons and help them on the path towards achieving
social mobility We also believe there is a role for us to play in
supportng the schools leadership teams as they work to dnve
up standards, and we are represented on the governing bodies of
all three schools

We are delighted that our Business in the Community ‘Big Tick',
first awarded in 2010 in recognition of our wark with schools, has
been reaccredited in 2013 indicabing that our partnerships have
developed and continue tc make a positive Impact

Community development

We support community organisations working to combat the
effects of depnivation In the areas in which our pariner schools are
based Volunteers have this year supported the Bromley by Bow
Centre, City Gateway, Providence Row the London Wildiife Trust
and Teach First, amongst others, volunteenng on behalf of 1solated
elderly people, young people in vocaticnal training London's
homeless and cur environment We have also established new
relabonships with Age UK Camden and Body & Soul in lslington
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Report of the Directors

Rothschild and the environment

We understand that the Groups day to day operations have an
impact on the environment and we are committed to reducing
that impact promoting environmental awareness among our
people, and to achieving continuous Improvement n our
environmental performance Environmental stewardship is the
responsibility of the Environment Committee

Energy use

Qur greatest environmental priorty s to keep reducing our
use of energy, particularly electncity, and n recent years we
have achieved considerable success in this Having moved into
our new building, we are now 1n the process of establishing

a new basetine energy footprint and beginning to map the
opportunities for future mprovements

Business travel

Aur travel and the ability to meet our clents face to face s an
important part of our business and a significant contributor

1o our overall CC; emissions We monitor our air travel and
measure the asscciated carbon emissions by cabin class We
operate a ‘Green Flights' scheme to make staff aware of the
greater level of emissions associated with flying Business Class
and offer them the opportunity to choose a lower cabin class in
return for a donation te the charity of their choice

Responsible use of resources

We promote a policy of reducing waste, reusing what we or
others can and recycling as much as possible In London the
unused food from our kitchens 1s composted and converted into
ferthser and any other waste which 1s not recycled 1s sent for
incinerabion with energy capture thus diverting it from landfill We
purchase recycled paper and our pnnters are set to pnint double-
sided as default. We use mugs instead of disposable coffee cups
where possible and filtered tap water in place of bottled water

in meeting rooms [n 2012/13 a Green Champions network

of employee volunteers was set up to help implement more
effectve working pracuces across the London office

Staff

During the year the Group continued wath rts long-established
policy of providing employees with nfermation on matters of
concern to them and on developments within the Group by a

senes of nouces to staff The Group encourages staff to put forward

their views through a staff consultative committee The interest of
all staff in the performance of the Group 1s realised through the
Group’s profit shanng scheme in which staff at all levels partiopate

The recrurtment, training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons 1s fully and fairly considered having regard
10 the aptitudes and abilities of each individual Efforts are made
to enable employees who become disabled during employment
1o continue their career with the Group and. if necessary,
appropnate training 15 provided
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Supplier payment policy

The Group does not currently follow any code or standard on
payment practice It 15 the Group's policy to confirm the terms

of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction, to ensure that those suppliers are made aware of the
terms of payment, and i abide by the terms of payment. induded
within llabilrzes (s the amount due to trade creditors which, at

31 March 2013, represented 32 days purchases outstanding

Directors

The names of the present Directors of the Company are shown
on page S

It s with much regret that the Directers record the death, on
19 April 2012 of Mr Leopold de Rothschild

Peter Barbour was appointed to the Board on 22 March 2013

Auditor

Qur audrtor, KPMG Audit Ple, has instigated an orderly wind
down of business The Board has decided to put KPMG

LLP forward to to be appointed as auditor and a resolution
concerning its appointment will be put to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeung of the Company

Audit information

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
report confirm that, sc far as they are each aware, there 1s no
relevant audit informaticn of which the Companys auditors

are unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that he
ought to have taken as a Cirector to make himself aware of any
relevant audt information and to establish that the Company's
auditor 1s aware of that nformation

By Order of the Board

Jonathan Westcott, Secretary
New Court, St, Swithin's Lane, London EC4N BAL
25 June 2013
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Committees

Te fac!itate the efficient administration of the Company’s and the Group's affairs, certain functions and responsibilities have been
delegated by the NMR Board to the folilowing commuttees, a number of which cover the wider Pans Orleans Group (“FO") The
terms of reference and membership of these commitiees are regularly reviewed

PO Group Committees which determine overall strategy

PO Group Management Committee

The purpose of the Group Management Commuttee 15 to formulate
strategy for the Rathschild Group's businesses, to assess the delvery of
that strategy, to ensure the proper and effective functioning of Group
governance structures, operating policies and procedures, to define the
Groups risk appetite and 1o be responsible for the management of risk.

The committee compnses the two Chief Executive Officers of PO Gestion,

Managing Partner of Pans QOrleans SCA (the Rothschild Group holding
company), the main dmvsional business heads, the Group Firance Director;
the Group Vice-Chairman Risk and Regulztion, the Group Head of Legal
and Comphance, the Group Strategy Cfficer and the Group Human
Resources Director

PC Group Assets and Liabilites Committee

This commitiee 1s responsible for ensuring that the Group has prudent
funding and iquidity strategies for the efficient management and

deployment of capital resources and for the oversight of the management

of the Group's other financial strategies and policies set by the Group
Managemert Committee

Membership

Nigel Higgins (Charman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Alexandre de Rothschild, Paul Barry, Mark Crump,
Andrew Didham, Jean-Louis Laurens, Marc-Clivier Laurent,
Robert Letdo,Vert de Maddalena, Richard Martm,

Alain Masstera, Olvier Pecoux {Co-Chief Executive
Officer), Gary Powell Jonathan Westcott.

Membership

Anthony Alt (Chairman), Peter Barbour Chnstopher
Coleman, Paul Copsey, Mark Crump, Andrew Didham,
Denis Faller Adam Greenbury, Richard Martin,
Alexander Troschel, Philip Yeates

Committees of the Company which have oversight responsibilities

Credit Committee

This commuttee authonses and reviews all credit exposure to new and
exising counterparties Exposures exceeding certain mits are subject
to ratification by the Group Assets and Liabilites Committee

New Client Acceptance Committee

This committee approves, from a reputational money laundering
and due diigence perspective, all new dients to be accepted by the
Glebal Financial Advisory business

Membership

Andrew Didham (Chawman) Michael Clancy,
Christopher Coleman, Paul Copsey Adam Greenbury,
Peter Griggs Debra Lew:s Paul Thompsan Philip Yeates
Membership

Crispin Wright (Chairman), Sarah Blomfield,

Adam Greenbury, Dominic Hellamby, Nicholas ey,

Axel Stafflage Albrecht Stewen Stuart Vincent,
William Weils, Jonathan Westcott Adam Young

PO Group Committees which have oversight responsibilities

PO Group Audit Committee

This committee supervises and reviews the Group's internal audit
arrangements haises with the Group's external auditors and monitors
the overall system and standards of internal control

PO Group Compliance Committee

This committee examines the effectiveness of the Group's compliance
policies and monitoring programmes

PO Group Remuneranon Committee

This committee sets remuneration policies for the Group oversees the
annual remuneration review and approves proposals for promotion
PO Group Risk Committee

This committee formulates adequate nsk identficavon, measurement,
monroning and control policies and procedures that reflect the Group's nisk
profile and monrtors en a consolidated basis the matenal nsks of the Group

Membership

Peter Smith (Chairman), Andre Levy-Lang,
Sylvain Hefes, Christian de Labriffe

Membership

Jonathan Westeott (Chairman), John Carroll, Jeanny
Chang, Canne de La Cotardiére, Alexander MacPhee,
Stephane Moal Lucy Moreton Axel Stafflage

Membership

Sylvain Héfes {Chairman), David de Rothschild,
Enc de Rothschild, Mark Evans, Peter Srmith
Membership

Alan Cornu-Thenard (Chairman), Andrew Didham
Sylvain Héfes, Jean-Louis Laurens, Philippe Le Bourgeois
Richard Martin, Michele Mezzarobba
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
relation to the report of the Directors and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of
the Directors and the financial staterments in accordance with
applicable faw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and
Parent Company financial siatements for each financial year
Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare both
the Group and the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with (FRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give 2
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Parent
Company for that perod

In prepanng each of the Group and the Parent Company
financial statements, the Directors are required to

®  select sutable accounting policies and then apply
thern consistently

®  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent.

® state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU, and

® prepare the financial statemenits on the going concern basis
unless it 15 INappropriate to presume that the Group and
the Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any tme the financial position of the Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financiat statements comply with
the Campanies Act 2006 They have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably cpen to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and 1o prevent and detect fraud and
other wregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the Companys website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ
from legslation in other jurisdictions
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial
staternents (the “financiat statements™) of N ™M Rothschild & Scns
Limited for the year ended 3| March 2013 set out on pages |6
to 80 The financial reporting framewark that has been appled

In thewr preparaton 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS ") as adopted by the EU and, as
regards the Parent Company financial statemnenis, as applied in
accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditors report and for
no ciher purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Companys members, as a bedy, for our audit
work, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors
and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
responsibilites on page 12, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being sausfied that
they give a true and fair view Cur responsibility 1s 1o audit, and
express an apinton on, the finanaal statements In accordance
with apphcable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing

(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us te comply with

the Financial Reporting Councils {FRCs) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

A description of the scope of an audrt of financial statemenis 1s
provided on the FRCs web-siie at.

www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinton on Financial Statements
In our opinion

= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs
as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

»  the Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU and as applied in accordance with the prowssions of
the Companies Act 2006, and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004

Opinon on Other Matters Prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opmion the information given in the Directors' report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on Which we are Required to Report
by Exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 reguires us 1o report to you ff,
N Qur opINION

= adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns
adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us, or

& the financial statements are not In agresment with the
accountng records and returns, or

®  certan disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audi.

Pamela Mcintyre
(Senior Statutcry Audrtor)

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

I5 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London .

Ei4 5GL

25 june 2013
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 012

Note £'000 £000

Interest and similar income 4 62996 76354
Interest expense and similar charges 4 (43 867) (58958)
Net interest income 19,129 17,396
Fee and commission income ) 399080 354991
Fee and commission expense 5 (29969) (22951)
Net fee and commussion income 369,114 332,040
Net trading income 6 1474 2958
Other operating Income 7 11437 13,939
Totat operaung ncome 401151 372333
Impairment losses on loans and other credrt risk provisions 1112 (11910) {12770)
Other mparmenit losses on avalable-for-sale equities 12 (7941) -
Net operaung income 381,309 359,563
Operating expenses 89 (324 447) {320313)
Depreciation amortisation and imparment of nen-financial assets 1718 (11940 (7 842)
Share of profit in associates 15 3039 3514
Profit before income tax 47,952 34922
Tax 10 (17351) {10291)
Profit for the year* 30601 24,631

* Of the £30,601,000 (2012 £24,631,000) profit for the year, £17,920,000 (2012 £8,732000) s attnbutable 1o ordinary
shareholders of the parent company, £8 257,000 (2012 £3 007 000) 1s attnbutable to holders of perpetual instruments and
£4,424000 (2012 £6,892,000) is attributable to other non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 23 1o BO form an integral part of these finanaal statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 3| March 2013

2013 2012
Note £°000 £'000
Profit for the financial year 30,601 24,631
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale investments
Change n farr value of assets classified as avallable-for-sale 16477 (14205)
Net change in fair value of avalable-for-sale financial assets
transferred to income statement 5088 (526)
Amorusaton of far value of reclassified assets I 6832 5037
Cash flow hedges
Effectve portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges (2991) 2156
Other items recognised directly n equity
Actuariat losses on defined benefit pensian funds 22 (12174) (62 224)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,438 (3570)
Income tax on cther comprehensive iIncome 10 {5251) 12,969
Other comprehensive income for the financial year,
net of Income tax 9,419 (60,363)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 40,020 (35732)
Autributable to
— Crdinary shareholders of the parent 27179 (50463)
- Helders of perpetual instruments 8257 $007
- Cther non-controlling interests 4,584 5724
40,020 (35732)

The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £'000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 837043 543038
Loans and advances to banks i} 70894 156445
Loans and advances to customers t 599475 825509
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 12 249,702 376539
Denvatives i3 22516 235117
Other assets 14 164245 133402
Current tax assets 3053 2479
Investments in associates 15 41579 38510
Intangile assets 17 18526 22631
Property plant and equipment 8 60071 63,136
Deferred tax assets 21 92864 98214
Total assets 2,159,968 2285020
Liabiiuies
Deposits by banks 313975 178176
Customer deposits 932227 I 110091
Derivatves 13 3541 4366
Debt secursues in sssue 19 - 144717
Other habilit:es 20 165994 139110
Current tax jiabilites 7638 4985
Accruals and deferred income 229251 207 000
Total habiliues | 652626 1,788,445
Equity
Share caprtal 29 57655 57 655
Share premiur account 97936 97936
Retained earnings 223150 229376
Cther reserves (10915) (31.320)
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 367,826 353,647
Non-controlling interests 28 15181 18,593
Perpetual instruments 30 124335 124335
Total equity 507,342 496,575
Total equity and habiliues 2,159,968 2 285,020

The accounts on pages |6 to 80 were approved by the Beard of Directors and were signed on rts behalf by

AN

Andrew Didham Direcior
25 June 2013

The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 3| March 2013

Avarlable- Non-
Share Share Retained Translauon for-sale Hedging Perpetual controling
capital  premwum  earnings reserve  reserve reserve nstruments nterests Total equity
£ 000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £000  £000 £000 £ 000 £'000
At ) April 2012 57,655 97,936 229376 13,267  (46,604) 2017 124335 18,593 496,575
Total comprehensive
income for the period - - 6774 1,196 21485  (2276) 8257 4584 40020
Dridends - - (13000} - - - - (7996)  (2099¢)
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - - (10864) - (10864)
—Tax thereon - - - - - - 1607 - 2607
At 31 March 2013 57,655 97936 223,150 14,463  (25,119) (259} 124,335 15,181 507 342
At | April 2011 57655 97,936 288458 15719  (38,027) 169 124,335 18,138 564,583
Total comprehensve
ncome for the penad - ~  (41082) (2452) (B577) | 648 S 007 5724 (35732)
Dwidends - - (18000) - - - - (5269y (23269)
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - - (12172} - (1217
~Tax thereon - - - - - - 3165 - 3165
At 31 March 2012 57655 97,936 229.37¢ 13267  (46,604) 2017 124 335 18,593 496 575

The notes on pages 23 1o 80 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £ 000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 837,032 543025
Loans and advances to banks It 10995 92006
Loans and advances to customers I 5467516 793069
Avalable-for-sale financial assets 12 248525 375006
Derwatives 13 22516 25117
Orther assets 14 105941 91871
Current tax assets - 347
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 31 43547 43547
Investments in assocates 15 38,379 3664
Investments in joint ventures 16 3000 5375
Property plant and equipment 8 48788 51562
Deferred tax assets 21 78426 88 140
Total assets 2 008,665 2145 676
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 312646 178 176
Customer deposits 941030 | 184863
Dervatives 13 3541 4366
Debt securrties in 1ssue 19 - 86113
Other habiliues 20 122 137 112010
Current tax habilsties 826 -
Accruals and deferred income 180721 150943
Total habilives 1,560,901 1,716 471
Equity
Share capial 29 57 655 57655
Share premum account 97936 97936
Perpetual instruments 30 124335 124335
Retained earnings 194 209 195,460
Cther reserves (26371) (46181
Total equity 447,764 429 205
Total equity and habihtes 2,008,665 2,145,676

The accounts on pages | 6 to 80 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on rts behalf by

SA

Andrew Didham, Director
25 June 2013

The notes on pages 23 1o 80 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 3| March 2013

Avatable-
Share Rewaned for.sale Hedging  Perpetual Tora!
Share capital prermium earnings reserve reserve Instruments equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At | Aprit 2012 i 57.655 97,936 195,450 {48 198) 2017 124 335 429,205
Profit for the financial year - - 22827 - - 8257 31084
Other comprehensive tncome
Avallable-for-sale investments
Change in fair value of assets
classified as avalable-for-sale - - - 17,153 - - 17153
Met change in fair value of avallzble-for-sale
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - 5088 - - 5088
Amortisation of far value of
reclassified financial assets - - - 6832 - - 6,832
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in far value
of cash flow hedges - - - - (2991} - (2991)
Orher items
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension funds - - (11966) - - - (i 1968)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - 888 (6987) 715 - (5384
Dradends - - (13 000) - - - (¥3000)
Interest on perpetual instruments - ~ - - - (10864) (10864)
—Tax thereon - - - - - 2,607 2607
At 31 March 2013 57,655 97.936 194,209 {26,112} (259) 124,335 447 764
At | April 201} 57,655 97,936 253,140 (39201) 359 124,335 494,234
Profit for the financial year - - 10092 - - 9007 19099
Other comprehensive income
Avallable-for-sale investments
Change in farr value of assets
classified as avalable-for-sale - - - (14492) - - {14492)
Net change in fair value of avalfable-for-sale
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - {(526) - - (526)
Amortisation of far value of
reclassified financiat assets - - - 5037 - - 5037
Cash flow hedges
Effective paruon of changes in
far value of cash flow hedges - - - - 2156 - 2156
Orther items
Actuanal losses on defined
benefit pensicn funds - - (62222} - - - (62222)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - 12450 984 (508) - 12,926
Dvdends - - (18000} - - - (18,000}
interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - (12172} (12172)
—Tax thereon - - - - - 3,165 3165
At 31 March 2012 57.655 97,936 195,460 (48,198) 2017 124,335 429,205

The notes on pages 23 to B0 form an imegral part of these financal statements
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Cash flow statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Cash flow from operaung acuvities
Profit before income tax for the financial year 47,952 39.606 34,922 18,407
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from operaung acuvities
Non-cash items included in net profit and other adjustments
Depreciation, amortsation and smparment of googwill 11940 4736 7842 3614
Drvidends from subsidianes associates and joint ventures - (25,176) - (20805)
Share of operating profit of associates (3039) - (3514) ~
Imparment of financal and other assets (net of recovery) 19851 20884 12770 15083
Unrealsed exchange losses/(gains) — non-operating assets 798 - (2616) -
Loss/{profit) on disposal of loans and available-for-sale assets | 859 1,859 (2510) (2510)
Profit on disposal of subsidianes 4 ) {546) -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (102) (37) (130) (6]
31,303 2262 11,296 (4.62%)
Net decrease/(increase) in operaung assets
Net due to/from banks {excluding cash equivalents) 135461 134 368 1903 944
Derwatives 2601 2601 (7973} (7973)
Awvallable-for-sale financial assets 146 245 146246 193895 193067
Loans and advances to customers 213715 2121186 51994 49014
Accrued income prepad expenses and other assets (31 394) {48070) 6733 7705
466,628 477,261 246,552 243 757
Net (decrease)/increase in operating habilives
Customer deposits {177.864) {243 833) (149 468) (456207)
Repurchase agreements - - (41 708) (41708)
Derwvatives (3818) (3815) (8053 (80O16)
Debt securtbies in 1ssue (144 717) 86113) (319031) (10048)
Accrued expenses and other habifities 369461 27939 (19651 (4 734)
Income taxes paid (1'1646) (410) (6004) | 821
(301,082) (306 233) (543,915) (518 892)
Net cash flow from/{used in) operating acuviues® 244,801 212,896 (251,145) (261 357)
Cash flow (used in)/from investing actvites
Acquistion/increase n stake of subsidianes associates and joint ventures {1631) {t 768} (3314) (906)
Dnadends recesed from subsidiaries associates and joint ventures 1426 5176 250% 20809
Proceeds from disposal of subsidianes associates and joint ventures 4 2379 4,045 3503
Purchase of fixed assets (5371) (1967) (39 B66) (35505)
Disposal of fixed assets 747 42 | 044 7
Net cash flow {used mn)/from invesung actvities (4.825) 13,862 (35.578) (12,492)
Cash flow used in financing actvities
Dwdends paid {13000) {13 000) (18000) (18000)
Interest paid on perpetual Instruments (10 864) (10864) (12172) (12,172)
Distrbutions to nen-controling interests {(7996) - (5269 -
Net cash flow used in financing actmues (31,860) (23.864) {35441) (30172)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 208,116 112,894 (322,164) (304,021)
Cash and cash equivalents at | Aprit 654768 634859 1016932 938880
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| March 26 902,884 847,753 694 768 634,859

* Group cash paid and receved for interest during 2013 was £38 698 000 (2012 £60,333,000) and £64 924,000 (2012 £73,967.000)
respectively Company cash paid and recewved for interest during 2013 was £37,811,000 (2012 £58314000 ) and £50,425,000

(2012 £61,323,000) respectively
The notes on pages 23 to B0 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

l. Summary of significant accounting policies

N M Rethschild & Sons Limited (“the Company™) 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom The Group financial
statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries and jontly-controlied entities (together referred to as “the
Group”) and equity account for the Group’s interests in associates The Parent Company financial statements present imformation
about the Company as a separate entrty and not about ris group The accounting policies of the Group set out in this note also
apply o the Parent Company financial statements unless otherwise stated

Developments in reporting standards and interpretations

Standards affecting the financial statements

In the current year, there have been no new or revised Standards that have affected the amounts reported n these financial statements

Standards not affecting the reported results or the financial position

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year Their adoption has not had
any significant mpact on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may iImpact the accounting for future transactions
and arrangements

" Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets’

= Amendments to IAS 12 'Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets’

New 5tandards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after

I Apnl 2012 and therefore have not been apphed in prepanng these consolidated financial statements The Group 1s currently
reviewing these new standards to determing their effects on the Group’s financial reporting Those that may have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are

Accounung standards first effective in the Group’s 2014 consolidated financial statements

IAS |9 Employee Benefits (revised) results in changes to the recognition and measurement of defined benefits expenses and
certan disclosures The most significant impact for the Group 1s 10 increase the pension expense in the Income Statement by the
difference between the current expected return on plan assets and the return calculated by applying the IAS |9 discount rate
Had the changes been effactive for the year 1o 31 March 2013 the income statement charge for defined benefit pensions would
have been £4 3 million greater atthough actuanal losses recognised in other comprehensive income would have been reduced by
the same amount.

Accounting standards first effective in the Group's 2015 consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 Consoldated Financial Statements replaces IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC-12
Consolidaton — Speciat Purpose Entities The new standard introduces a single mode! of assessing control Control exists where an
investor has the power to direct the activities of another enuty in order to influence the returns to the investor

(FRS 11 Joint Arrangements replaces [AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures The new standard requires all joint ventures to be equity
accounted whereas, currently, the Group accounts for joint ventures by proportional consolidation

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entries sets out new disclosure requirements in respect of interests in subsiciaries joint
arrangements and associates It 2lso ntroduces new requirements for unconsolidated structured entries

Accounting standards first effective in the Group’s 2016 consolidated finanaial statements

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces certain elements of IAS 3% Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement in respect of
the classification and measurement of financial assets and habilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

l. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

Both the Parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared n accordance with International Financial
Reporung Standards (“IFRS ") and Internauonal Finanaial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (“IFRIC™) interpretations endorsed
by the European Union ("EU'") and with those requirements of the Companies Act 2006 apphcable to companies reporting under
IFRS The financial statemenits are prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except that avallable-for-sale investments, financial
assets held for trading and all dervative contracts are stated at their far value

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its
indadual income statement and related notes

Certain comparatives have been restated to align accrued interest with the relevant financial instruments The reclassification has no
impact on earrings and was done to ensure consistency with current year presentation

The principal accounting pohcies set out below have been consistently applied in the presentation of the Group financial statements

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group are made up to 31 March 2013 and consolidate the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakengs

Subsidiary undertakings are all entives (including special purpose entities (“SPEs"}) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally as a result of a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts, so as to cbtan benefits
from the actwvihies of the entity In assessing control, potential voung nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into
account. SPEs are consolidated when the substance of the relationship between the Group and the SPE indicates control by the Group
Potential indicators of control include an assessment of the risks and benefits relating to the SPE's actvities Subsidiary undertakings are
fully consoldated from the date on which the Group acguires control and cease to be consolidated from the date that control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting for the acquisition of subsidiary undertakangs The cost of an acquistion is
measured as the far value of the assets given as consideration shares 1ssued or liabilrues undertaken at the date of acquisition
plus, for acquistions prior to the adoption of the amendment to [FRS 3, any costs directly attributable to the acquisiton Since
the adoption of the amendment to IFRS 3, any costs attributable to the acquisition are expensed through the Income Statement
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets and far value of contingent liabiliies of the
subsidiary undertaking acquired 1s recorded as goodwall All inter-company transactions balances and unrealised surpluses and
deficiis on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consohidation The accounung policies used by subsidiary
undertakings are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group

In the Parent Company finanoial statements investments in subsidary undertakings are carned at cost less any imparrment losses

Associated undertakings

An assotiated undertaking 1s an entity n which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial
management pclicy decisions This s generally demonstrated by the Group holding in excess of 20 per cent, but no more than 50
per cent, of the votng nghts

The Groups investments in associated undertakings are initally recorded at cost. Subsequently they are increased or decreased by
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profit or lass, or by other movements reflected directly in the equity of the asscciated
undertakings When the Group's share of losses in an associated undertaking equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
undertaking, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless 1t has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated undertaking Positive goodwill anising on the acquisition of an associated undertaking 1s included n the cest of the
investment {net of any accumulated impairment loss)

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments 1n associated undertakings are carmed at cost

Joint ventures

A jontly controlled entity 1s a joint veniure that involves the establishment of an entity n which each venturer has an interest. Jointly
controiled entrues are consolidated using the proporucnal consclidation method, under which the Group's financial statements
include 1ts share of the joint venture’s assets habiliues, iIncome and expenses on a line-by-ine basis Proportional consolidation 1
discontinued when the Group no longer exercises joint control over the entty

In the Parent Campany financial statements, investments in jont ventures are carried at cost
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

l. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Going concern

The Group has considered its capital and hguidity requirements and continues to generate new profitable business It is well placed
to manage its business risk for the forseeable future despite an uncertain economic outlook and, therefore, the financal statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis

Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, rounded ta the nearest thousand (“£000™), unless otherwise stated
Sterling 1s the Company's functional currency and the Groups reporting currency ltems included in the financial staterents of
each of the Group's entities are measured using therr functional currency The functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates

Income staternents and cashflows of foreign operations are translated into the Group's reporting currency at average exchange
rates for the period where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions and their
balance sheets are translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures are taken to shareholders’ equity On disposal of
a foreign operation these translaiion differences are recognised n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevaling at the date of the transaction Gains and losses
resufting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary items that
are denorminated 1n foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges Non-monetary assets and habilives that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and habiliies denominated n foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates when the far value was determined

Translaton differences on equities classified as at far value through profit or loss are reported 2 part of the fair value gain or loss in the
ncarme statement. Transfation differences on equites classified as avalable-forsale are included n the available-for-sale reserve in equity

Goodwill and farr value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entry are treated as assets and labiiities of the foreign
entity and are translated at the closing rate

Derwvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives

Denvatves are entered into for trading and nsk management purposes Derwatives used for risk management are accounted for as
hedges where they qualify as such under |AS 39

Denvatives are initially recogrised at far value and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes 1n far value recognised in
the Income statement except that, where denvatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any gain or ioss depends on the
nature of the 1tem being hedged

Hedge accounting

The Group may apply erther fair value or cash flow hedge accounting when transactrons meet the ¢riteria for hedge accounting
treatment set out in IAS 39 At the inception of the hedge, the Group assesses whether the hedging dervatves meet the
effectiveness critena of IAS 39 in offsetting changes in the fair value or cashflows of the hedged tems The Group then documents
the relatonship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item It also records its nsk management objectives 1ts strategy for
undertaking the hedge transaction ang the methods used to assess the effectivengss of the hedging relationship

After incepuon effecuiveness is tested on an on-going basis Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when 1t 1s determined that a
denvative has ceased 1o be highly effecuve, when the dervative or the hedged item 1s derecognised, or when the forecast
transaction 13 no longer expected to occur

N M Rothschikd & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 25



Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Far value hedge accounting

Changes in value of fair value hedge derwatives are recorded in the Income statement, together with fair value changes to the
underlying hedged tem in respect of the risk being hedged

If the hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged tem on
termination of the hedging relationship and the value at which it would have been carred had the hedge never existed 1s amortised
10 the Income statement over the residual perod to matunty based on a recalculated effective interest rate

Cash flow hedge accounting

Changes In the farr value of the effective portion of dervatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity The gain or
loss relating to the ineffectve portion is recognised in the Income staterment. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement when the item being hedged tmpacts profit or loss

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued, any cumulative gan or loss in equity remains in equity and 1s only recogrised in the
income statement when the forecast transaction 1s recognised in the income statement. When the forecast transaction 15 no longer
expected 1o occur the cumulative balance in equity 15 immediately transferred 1o the income statement

Embedded derivatives

A hybrid (combined) contract contains both non-denvative host contract and one or more embedded denvatives Where the
economic charactensucs and risks of embedded denvatives are not closely related to those of the host contract. and where the
hybrid contract itself s not carned at far value through profit or loss, the embedded denvative 1s separated and recorded at farr
value wath gains ang losses being recognised In the Income statement

The Group's investments in collateralised debt obligatons (“CDOs' ) which take credit exposure in the form of credit dervatives are
treated as containing embedded denvatives that are not closely related to the host CDO contract The change in far value of these
“synthetc CDO contracts attributable to the credit dervatives 1s recagnised in the income statement as part of trading income

Interest Income and expense

Interest income and expense represents nterest ansing out of banking actvities including lending and deposit-taking, interest on related
hedging transactions and interest on debt securties Net interest ansing from interest rate instruments held for trading 1s ncluded in
trading income Interest income and expense 1s recognised in the Income statement using the effecuve interest rate methed

The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts the estmated future cashflows of a financial instrument to s net
carrying amount [t 15 used to calculate the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hiability and to allocate the interest over
the relevant peniod (usually the expected fife of the instrurnent} When calculating the effective interest rate the Group considers
all contractual terms of the financial Instrument {for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future cradit losses The
calcutation includes any premiurms or discounts, as well as all fees and transaction costs that are an integral part of the financial asset.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commussion income from services provided to chents Fee income from adwisory and other services can
be divided into two broad categones fees earned from services that are provided over a period of time, which are recognised over
the period In which the service 1s provided, and fees that are earned cn completion of a significant act or on the occurrence of an
event, such as the completon of a transaction which are recognised when the act 15 completed or the event occurs

Fees and commissions that are an integral part of a loan, and loan commitment fees for foans that are likely to be drawn down, are
deferred (together with related direct cosis) and recognised over the hfe of the loan as an adjustment to the effective interest rate

Trading income

Trading income anses from mavements in the far value of financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and habilities

Financial assets and liabities are recognised on trade date and derecognised on either trade date, i applhicable, or on maturity
or repayment.

Oninal recognition, IAS 39 requires that financial assets be classified into the following categones at fair value through profit or
loss loans and advances held-to-matunty investments or available-for-sale The Group does not hold any assets that are classified as
held-to-maturity ivestments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category compnises financial assets held for trading (1e primanly acquired for the purpose of seling in the short term) and
dervatives that are not designated as cashflow or net investment hedges These financial assets are inially recognised at farr value,
with transaction costs recorded immediately 1n the income statement and are subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses
anising from changes in fair value or on derecogrition are recogrised 1n the :ncome statement as net trading income Interest and
dwidend income from financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss is recognised in trading Income

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derwative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans which are intended to be sold in the short term are classified as held for trading and are recorded at far value through profit
or loss

Loans and advances are initally recorded at far value, ncluding any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effecuve interest rate method Gains and losses ansing on derecogrition of loans and
recevables are recognised in other operating Income

Financial assets that have been reclassified as foans and advances out of the avalable-for-sale category are reclassified at fair value
on the date of reclassification and are subsequently measured at amorused cost using the effectve interest rate method Any
gan or loss recognised in equity pnor to reclassification 1s amortised to the income statement over the remainng matunty of the
financial asset

Available-for-sale investments

Avallable-for-sale investments compnse non-dervative financial assets that are either designated as avallable-for-sale on inral
recognmion or are not classified into the categonies descnbed above Avallable-for-sale investments are intially recognised at far
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are subsequently measured at far value

Gains and losses ansing from changes in the far value of avallable-for-sale financial assets are recognised in equity until the financial
asset 15 sold, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 1s transferred to the income statement Interest (determined using the
effective interest rate method), impairment losses and translation differences on monetary itemns are recognised in the income
staternent as they anse Dividends on avallable-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the Income statement when the
Group's nght to receve payment 15 established

Financial habilities

Financial liabilives are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, except dervatives that are generally
classified as at far value through profit or loss on nal recognion

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that requere the 1ssuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a speofied debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee habilities are intally recogrised at fair value, and the inimal fair value 1s amorbsed over the Iife of the guarantee The
guarantee hability 1s subsequently carned at the higher of the amorbsed amount and the expected present value of any expected
payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable)

Where one Group company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within
the Group, that company considers these 1o be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Group
company treats the guarantee contract as a contngent hability until such time as it becomes probable that it will be required to
make a payment under the guarantee
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(forming part of the Financial Statements)

[ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and habilities (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when

1 the contractual nghts to cashflows ansing from the financial asset have expired or

i it ransfers the financial asset iIncluding substantialiy all of the nsks and rewards of the ownership of the asset, or

m 1t transfers the financial asset, nerther retaining nor transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but no longer
retains control of the asset.

Determination of fair value

The farr value of quoted Investments in active markets 15 based on current bid prices For other finanoial assets the Group
establishes far value by using appropriate valuation techniques These include the use of recent arms length transacuons,
discounted cashilow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation metheds commonly used by market participants For
certain Investments, the valuation may be denved from quotations receved from various sources Where the market 15 ilhquid, the
quotations may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions The fair value of short term debtors and creditors (s
materially the same as invoice value

Sale and repurchase agreements

When securriies are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined price, they remain on the balance sheet
and a liabilty 15 recorded in respect of the consideration receved The difference between the sale and repurchase price 1s treated
as interest and recognised over the life of the agreement Securities acquired in a reverse sale and repurchase agreement are not
recognised and the consideraton s recorded in loans and advances on the balance sheet

Securimisation transactions

The Group may enter into funding arrangements with lenders in order to finance speafic financial assets

In general, the assets from these transactions are held on the Group s balance sheet on ongination However, to the extent that the
risks and returns associated with the assets have been transferred 1o a third party, the assets are derecognised in whole ar in part.

Interests In securitised financial assets may be retained or taken in the form of senior or subordinated tranches of debt securues, or
other residual interests Such retained interests are primarily recorded as avallable-for-sale assets
Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determing whether there 15 objective ewdence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impaired

impairment losses are incurred If there 1s abjective ewidence of impairment as a resutt of one or more events occurnng after inital
recogntion of the asset (a‘loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estmated future cashflows of the financiat asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets 1s impared
includes observable data about the following loss events

1 significant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer,
i1 abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal repayment,

i granting to the borrower a concession, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, that the
lender would not otherwsse consider.,

v it becoming probable that the borrower wall enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
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|. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and habilities {continued)

Impairment of loans and advances

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indvidually for financial assets that are indwidually
significant and indmdually or collecuvely for financial assets that are not indidually significant. Impairment losses are cafculated on a
collective basis in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet wdentfied on loans that are subjeci to individual assessment
for impairment and for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered ndmdually significant. If no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an indwidually assessed financal asset, it 15 included in a collectve assessment for impairment with other assets
with similar risk charactenstics

If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of expected future cashflows discounted at the financial asset’s onginal
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced, the loss being recognised in the income statement.

The calculation of the present value of the estuimated future cashflows of a financial asset reflects the cashflows that may result
from scheduled interest payments, principal repayments, or other payments due, including hquidation of collateral where available
In estimating these cashflows, management makes judgements about a courterpariys financial situation and the fair value of any
underlying collateral or guarantees in the Group's favour Each impaired asset 1s assessed on 1is ments and the workout strategy
and estimate of cashflows considered recoverable are reviewed by the Credit Committee on a quarterly basis The methodclogy
and assumptions used for esumating both the amount and the timing of future cashflows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estmates and actual loss expenence

Collectively assessed credit risk allowances cover cradit losses inherent in portfolios of financial assets with similar economic
charactersucs where there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired assets but the indvidual impatred items
cannot yet be identified For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit nisk charactenstics Future cashflows are estmated on the basis of historical loss expenence These estmates are
subject to regular review and adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the penod on which the
histonical loss expenence s based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical penod that do not exist currently

Once a financial asset or a group of smilar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest Income
15 recognised using the onginal effective interest rate which was used to discount the future cashflows for the purpese of measuring
the impairment loss

If,1n a subseguent pernod. the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related to an objectve event
occurnng afier the imparrment was recognised (for example being awarded a new contract that matenally enhances future
cashflows}, the previously recognised impairment loss s reversed by adjusting the allowance for loan imparrment The amount of the
reversal 1s recognised in the income statement.

When a lpan 1s deemed uncollectable 1t is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Recovertes received in
respect of loans previously wiitten off are recorded as a decrease in the impairment losses on loans and advances and are reccrded
in the income statement in the year in which the recovery was made Loans subject to indiwidual impairment assessment whose
terms have been renegotiated and which would have been past due or impared had they not been renegotiated are reviewed to
determine whether they are impaired or past due

Impairment of available-for-sale assets

Avallable-for-sale assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 15 objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets 15 impaired, which requires judgement by management.

For equrty shares classified as avalable-for-sale a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securtty below nis cost is
considered ewidence of impairment If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss 1s removed from equity and recogrised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value on an equity share classified as available-for-sale increases, the imparment
loss 1s not reversed through the income statement, but remains recorded n equity

Impairment of avadable-for-sale debt securties 15 based on the same critena as for all other financial assets If in a subsequent penod the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as availzble-for-sale ncreases and the increase can be objectively related 1o an event occurring
after the mparment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss 15 reversed through the income statement.

The loss recognised 1n the Income statement I1s the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement.
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l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Debt/equity classification

Under IFRS the cnitical feature in differentiating a debt instrument from an equity instrument 1s the existence of a contractual
obhgation of the Group 1o delver cash (or another finanaat asset) 1o another entiiy Where there 15 no such contractual obligation,
the Group will classify the financial instrument as equity, otherwise it will be classified as a lability and carried at amortised cost.
Under IFRS the contractual terms of the transaction tzkes precedence over its economic substance in determining how it should
be classified The terms of the perpetual debt instruments issued by the Group permit interest payments to be wasved unless the
Company has paid a dvidend in the previous six months and are therefore considered 1o be equity

Goodwill and intangible assets

1 Goodwill In a subsidiary or an associated undertaking represents the excess, at the date of acquisiion, of an acquisiion’s cost
over the fair value of the Group's share of net identfiable assets acquired |dentifiable ntangible assets are those which can be
sold separately or which arise from legal nghts regardless of whether those nghts are separate

When the Group increases Its stake i an entity which it already controls, any difference between the price paid for the
addiional stake and the increase in the net assets acquired by the Group 1s recognised directly in equity

Goodwil 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently when cicumstances indicate that sts arrying amount 1s too fugh Goodwall s allocated to cash-generaung units for
the purposes of mparment testing If the net present values of the cash-generating units forecast cashflows are insufficient
to support therr carrying value then the goodwill s impaired Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in the income
statement and are not reversed

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entty Include the carrying amount of goodwall relating to the entity sold

Negative goodwill In an asscciated or subsidiary undertaking represents the excess of net identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisiion cost, and 1s recognised immediately in the income statemeant.

i Intangible assets comprise acquired mntellectual property rights and future serviang nghts, which are carned at cost less
accumulated amortisation and imparment losses The intellectual property rights are amertised on the basis of an esumated
useful Ife of 10 years The future servicing nghts are amortised over the servicing penod as the fees from servicing are
recognised Intangble assets are revtewed at each reporung date to determine whether there 1s any objective ewdence of
imparment. I such evidence exists an impairment test 1s performed and, if necessary, an impairment charge 15 recognised in the
Income statement

Property, plant and equipment

All property plant and equipment (s stated at cost Cost includes expenditure that s directly attnbutable to the acquistion of the
asset including, In respect of leasehold improvements costs incurred in prepaning the property for occupation (this includes rent
paid whilst the preparation work 1s undertaken})

Land 1s not depreciated Deprecrauion on other assets 1s calcutated using the straight-kne method to write down the cost of assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Computer equipment 2-10 years
Cars 3-5 years

Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 4-24 years

The assets' residual values and useful hves are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts These gains and losses are recogrised
in the Income statement.
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l.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently where events or changes in circumstances dictate, property, plant and equipment is
assessed for indications of impairment If such indications are present, those assets are subject to an impairment review If impared
the carrying values of assets are written down by the amount of any impairment and the loss 1s recognised in the Income statement
in the period in which 1t occurs A previously recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asset may be reversed when a change

in crcumstances leads to a change in the estimates used to determine the fixed assets recoverable amount The carrying amount of
the fixed asset 1s only increased up to the amount that & would have been had the onginal impairment not been recognised

Finance and operating leases
Where the Group 1s the lessor

Finance leases

When assets are held subject to a finance |ease, the present value of the lease payments 15 recognised as a recevable The difference
between the gross recevable and the present value of the recevable 1s recognised as unearned finance income Lease income 1s
recogrised In interest income over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant
penodic rate of return

Operating leases

Assets acquired for use by customers under operating lease agreements, including inital direct costs incurred i negotiating an
operating lease, are capitalised and included in the relevant category of fixed assets Depreciation 1s charged on a straight-line basis
to write the value of the asset down to the expected residual value over a peried cansistent with other assets of a similar type

Operating lease ncome and the inibial direct costs are recogmised in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the peniod
of the lease

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group has entered into operating leases in respect of office premises The total payments made under operating leases are
charged to the Income staterment as Operating expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with enginal maturities of three months or less, including cash and non-restricted
balances with central banks, certificates of deposit and loans and advances to banks

Pensions

The Group's post-retirement benefit arrangements are descrnibed in note 22 The Group operates a number of pension and other
post-retrament benefit schemes, both funded and unfunded, of the defined benefit and defined contnbution types For defined
contrbution schemes, the contribution payable in respect of the accounting period 1s recognised in the income statement

The defined benefit schemes are accounted for using the option permitted by the amendment made to I1AS 19 Employee Benefits
whereby actuanal gans and losses are recogrused outside the income statement and presented in the statement of comprehensive
income The amount recognised tn the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes 15 the difference, if any, between the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date and the fair value of the plan's assets The defined benefit
obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method The principal assumptions are set
out n note 22 The present value of the obligation 1s deterrmined by discounting the estmated future cash outflows using Interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be pard and that have terms
10 maturty approximating to the terms of the related pension labihites

Long term employee benefits

The Group operates long term profit share schemes for the benefit of employees The costs of such schemes are recognised in the
income staiement over the penod in which the services are rendered that give nse to the obligation Where the payment of profit
share 15 deferred until the end of a specified vesting penod the deferred amount 1s recogrised in the income statement over the
penod up 1o the date of payment.

The Group has entered into cash-settied share-based payment transactions as part of the long term profit share schemes The
farr value of such awards 1s measured at the date the awards are made and remeasured at each reporting date Such awards are
recognised in the income statement over the vesting penod untl payment.

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 525279 | Page 31




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

Tax payable on profits and deferred tax are recognised in the income statement excapt 1o the extent that they relate to items that
are recognised in eguity, n which case the tax 1s also recognised In equity

Deferred 1ax 1s provided s full using the balance sheet hability method, on temporary diferences ansing between the tax bases
of assets and habilites and their carrying amounts Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates and laws that are expected to apply
when a deferred tax asset 1s realised, or when a deferred tax hiability 1s settled

The principal temporary differences anse from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, deferred profit share arrangements,
revaluation of certain financial instruments including denvative contracts and avatlable-forsale secunties provisions for post-
retirement benefits and tax losses carred forward

Deferred tax assets, including the tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward, are only recogrised where 1t 1s
probable that future taxable profits will be avalable against which the temporary differences can be utiised Deferred tax 1s not
provded on temporary differences ansing from investments in subsidiary undertakings and associated undertakings, unless the
uming of the reversal of the temporary difference 15 controlled by a third party or 1t 1s probable that the difference will reverse in
the foreseeable future

Prwidends

Dwidends on ordinary shares are recognised In equity In the period in which they are declared by the Company's shareholders at
the Annual General Meetng or If earlier, when they are pad

Provisions and contingencies

Prowisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past evenis In addiion
1t must be probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 1t must also be possible to
make a relable estimate of the amount of the obligation

The Group recognises provisions in respect of onerous contracts when the expected benefits 1o be denved from a contract are
less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the cbligations under the contract.

Contingent habiliues are possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by one or mere uncertain
future events not wholly within the Group's control or present obligations that are not recogmised either because 1t 1s not probable
that an outfiow of resources will be required to setile the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated
Conungent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of a transfer of economic benefits 1s remote

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with [FRS requires the use of certain cnitical accounting estimates it also
requires management to exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities

Farr value 15 the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an
arm's length transaction For financial mstruments carned at far value, market prices or rates are used to determine far value where
an active market exists (such as a recognised exchange) as it s the best evidence of the fair value of a finanoial instrument. Market
prices are nat, however, avalable for certain financial assets and habiities held or 1ssued by the Group Where no active market
price or rate s avalable, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techrigues, using inputs based on market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date

A descrption of the vatuation techruques used, analysis of assets and habilities carried at fair vafue by valuation hierarchy, and a
sensitvity analysis of valuations not pnmanly based on observable market data 1s provided in note 3 to the financial statements
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l. - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting judgements and estimates {continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to datermine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired If there 1s such objective evidence, and this has a negative effect on the estimated future cashflows from
the asset, then an imparrment {css 15 incurred The amount of the loss 15 measured as the differsnce between the assets carrying
amount and the present value of expected future cashflows discounted at the asset's criginal effective Interest rate

Portfolios of financial assets wath similar economic charactenstics where there 15 objective evidence to suggest that they contam
impaired assets but the individually )mpaired tems cannot yet be dentified, are callectively assessed for impairment The: collectively
assessed imparment allowance 1$ calculated on the basis of future cashflows that are estimated based on historical loss experience

The accuracy of the allowances made depends on how accurately the Group estimates future cashflows for specific counterparty
allowances and prowisions and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining collective allowances Whie this
necessarily involves judgement the Group believes that its allowances and provisions are reasonable and supportable

Pensions

The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit methed and the
principal assumptions used are set out In note 22 The assumptions that have the greatest mpact on the measurement of the
pension fund lability are those related to retail price inflation and the discount rate used For example a | 0% ncrease in the
discount rate used would result in a £108 million decrease in the measurement of the pension fund liabilmes Similarly, a | 0%
Increase in the forecast rate of retail price inflation would result in a £89 milion increase in pension fund habilties

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets, Including those in relation o tax losses carried forwand, are only recogrised where it 1s probable that future
taxable profits will be avalable aganst which the temporary differences can be utihsed After revewing medwm term profit
forecasts as adjusted for tax purposes, the Group considers that there wili be sufficient future profits against which these deferred
tax assets can be utilised

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether it 1s impaired The assessment includes management
assumptions on future income flows and judgements on approprate discount rates Management performs sensiivity analysis of
these assumptions o support the valuation In the current year £2,500,000 of goodwill relating to the purchase of Lanebridgs
Investment Management Limited was deemed to be impared (see note (7 for further information)
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2. Financial Risk Management

2 1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The use of financial nstruments 1s fundamentat to the Group's banking and treasury actmties The Group provides a range of
lending products to s chents and funds these acuvities by means of deposii-taking and other borrowings and uses denvatives
principally to manage its exposure to interest rate and currency rsk Further information on derwative coritracts and the Group's
hedging strategies 15 set out n note |3 The key risks ansing from the Group’s activities involving financial instrurments are as follows

= Credrt nsk — the nsk of loss ansing from client or counterparty default.
& Market nsk — exposure to changes in market vanables such as interest rates, currency exchange raies, equity and debt prices

= Liqudity and funding nsk — the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty n meeting obligations assoniated with financial
kabilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset

22 Credit risk

Credrt nsk anses from all exposures to clients and counterparties relating to the Group's lending trading and investment activities
Limets on credit risk are set by the Group Management Committee and by the Credit Committee The Credit Committee reviews
concentrations and makes recommendations on credit decisions to the Group Assets and Liabilites Committee Credit nisk limits

are set, where appropriate n respect of exposures to indmidual clients or counterparties to industry sectors and to countries

Exposure to credit risk 1s managed by detaled analysis of chent and counterparty creditworthiness prnior to entering into an
exposure and by continued monitoring thereafter A significant proporuon of the Group’s lending exposures 1s secured on property
or other assets, the Group moniters the value of any collateral obtained The Group alsc uses netting agreements to restrict credit
exposure to counterparties For internal montonng purposes credrt exposure on loans and debt securtties 1s measured as the
principal amount outstanding plus accrued interest Credit exposure on dervatives 1s measured as the current replacement value
plus an allowance for the potential change In replacement value

The Credrs Committee reviews credit exposures on loans and debt securities on a quarterly basis and for this purpose they are
classified as follows

Category |

Exposures where the payment of interest or principal 1s not in doubt and which are not designated categories 2 to 5

Category 2

Exposures where the payment of interest or prinospal 1s not in doubt, but which require closer observation than usual due to
some deterioration in the positian of the client, for example poor trading results, difficult condiens in the chent's market sector
competrtive or regulatory threats or the potential impact from currency or other factors

Category 3

Exposures where there has been further deterioraton in the position of the chent. Although the exposure 1s not considered to be
imparred, the relatonship requires close monitoning by the front office team

Past due but not impaired

Exposures that have faled to make a scheduled interest or principal repayment although full recovery 1s expected

Category 4
Exposures that are considered to be impaired and which carry a provision against part of the toan Some recovery 15 expected to
be made

Category 5
Exposures that are considered to be impaired and which carry a full provision No significant recovery of value 1s expected

Page 34 | N M Rothschild & Sons bimited | Registered iNumber 925279




Notes to the Financial Statements

{forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit nisk (continued)

a Credit nsk exposure

The tables below disclose the maximum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting date for financial assets with significant exposure
to credit nsk, without taking account of collateral held or other credit nsk mitigation Accounts recervable are treated as past due
when more than 90 days has elapsed since the invoice was issued

Past due
Category Category Category but not  Categones  Impairment Total
] 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Group £ 000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 837043 - - - - - 837043
Dervatves 22514 - - - - — 22516
Loans and advances to banks 70894 - - - - - 70894
Loans and advances to customers 314108 86225 92392 27966 162605 (83821) 599475
Awvaillable-for-sale financial assets
— debt securtties 140,594 8,035 - - 1576 (10,574) 149631
Commitments and guarantees 6034 3051 2664 - 577 - 11326
Other financial assets 131514 - 325 10,403 7066 (5,772) 143536
Total 1,522,703 §7 311 95,384 38,369 181824 (100 167) | 835,421
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543038 - - - - - 543038
Dervatves 25117 - - - - - 25117
Loans and advances to banks 156445 - - - - - 156445
toans and advances to customers 495718 103721 126786 12259 158 829 (75804) B25509
Available-for-sale financial assets
~ debt securities 267870 125 - - 10891 (108%1) 267995
Commitments and guarantees 49,826 1013 4,708 - 1206 - 56753
Other financial assets 9% 688 - 1 3725 4,161 {3,420y 104165
Total | 641,702 104,859 131,505 15,984 175,087 (20 115) 1,879,022
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impaired
Past due by Past due by
< 6 months > 6 months Total
Group £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2013
Loans and advances to customers 7356 20610 27966
Accounts recenvable 4592 5411 10403
Total 12,348 26,021 38,369
At 31 March 2012
Loans and advances to customers 4098 8161 12259
Accounts receivable 799 2926 3725
Total 4897 11,087 15,984
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit risk (continued)
Past due
Category Category Category butnot  Categories  Imparrment Toual
1 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £:000 £000 £ 000
At 31 March 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 837032 - - - - - 837032
Dervatives 22516 - - - - - 22516
Loans and advances to banks 10995 - - - - - 10995
Loans and advances to customers 287215 862125 10t 395 20707 152414 (80 440} 567516
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
— debt securnies 140 467 8035 - - 11576 (10574) 149 504
Commrtments and guaraniees 142713 3051 2664 - 577 - 149005
Other financal assets 91953 - - 3245 2519 (2479 95238
Total 1,532,891 97,311 104 059 23,952 167,086 (93,493) 1,831,806
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543025 - - - - - 543025
Dervatives 25117 - - - - - 25117
Loans and advances to banks 92006 - - - - - 92006
Loans and advances to customers 467 790 103721 126786 7334 159,999 {72561) 793065
Awvallable-forsale financial assets
— debt securtties 267745 125 - - 10891 (10891 267870
Commitments and guarantees 247481 1013 4708 - 1206 - 254 408
Other financial assets 76572 - - 1721 3700 (2959) 79034
Toal 1 719,736 104,859 131,494 9,055 175,796 (86,411) 2,054,529
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impaired
Past due by Past due by
< & months > & months Total
Company £000 £ 000 £'000
At 31 March 2013
Loans and advances to customers I 110 19597 20707
Accounts recevable 2282 963 3245
Total 3392 20,560 23,952
At 31 March 2012
Loans and advances to customers 292 7042 7334
Accounts recevable 747 974 1,721
Total 1,039 8016 9,055
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

22  Credit nsk {continued)

b Collateral
The Group holds collateral against lcans and advances to customers

All nen-group commercial lending 1s secured Collateral is spiit by type, as either specific or general

Speaific collateral 1s readily identifiable, the majority of which will be charges over property or plant and equipment. If necessary

there is a realistic possibility of both taking possession of and realising the collateral

General collateral will be more difficult to both identify and realise It will usually be a general floating charge over the assets of a
business, and 1s typically attached to leveraged finance assets it 1s not practicable to ascribe a speafic value to this collateral

Unimpaired loans (levels | to 3) are covered by both specific and general collateral Unmpaired amounts covered by specific
cellateral includes property lending of £146 milion and asset based lending of £141 milllon which 1s fully collateralised Where a
loan 15 deemed to be impaired (level 4 and 5 assets), the level of the impairment charge s pnmanity driven by any expected shortfall

i the collateral value, although 1t 1s also influenced by the ability of the borrower to service the debt

Collateral 1s valued independently at the time the Ioan 1s made and pertadically thereafter on a rolling basis Management are able
to roll forward a valuation for reporting purposes via a combination of specific knowledge of the property and the application of

general property indices

The table below gives an estmate of the fair value of collateral that could be realised by the Group as security against exposures to

customers that are indvidually impaired and past due but not imparred

Past due Past due
but not Indiwvidually but not Indmidually
impaired impaired impaired mmpatred
2013 2013 2012 2012
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Group

Property 21312 81 380 3317 79,439
Debt and equity securities - 1,137 - 2000
Commercial vehicles and other equipment 6361 3522 3673 1,851
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges - 856l 5212 22797
Other - 837 - | 545
Collateral held 27673 95,437 12,202 107,732
Amount of exposures collateralised (net of specific provisions) 27 %66 105,540 12,259 112 835

Company
Property 20414 T 2065 74944
Debt and equrty securities - i 137 - 2000
Commercial vehicles and other equipment - - - 115
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges - 856l 5212 22797
Other - 837 - | 545
Collateral held 20,414 87,714 7217 101,401
Amount of exposures collateralised (net of speafic provisions) 20,707 95,349 7334 106,504
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit risk (continued)

c Forbearance

A refinancing and sale opuions are currently krmited, it 1s generally in the tender’s and borrower's interest to extend certain faciliies
at maturtty and not to foreclose on the security This assumes there are no undertying issues regarding the borrowers ability to
continue to service the loan and the level of collateral 1s expected to be of sufficient quality to secure the principal

Unimpaired loans extended in this manner are not categonsed as erther past due or as renegotiated As at 31 March 2013 loans
with a carrying value of £129 5m had been extended (2012 £228 5m) all of which were property loans

There are a small number of loans which are overdue but not impasred pending an extension of maturity As at 31 March 2013
these amounted to £207m (2012 £7 3rm)

Some loans were renegotated on substantally different terms than before Typically these loans include revised covenants

and higher margins to refiect higher credit risk as wel! as having extended maturities But for these renegotiaions the loans wouid
have been deemed to have been impaired As at 31 March 2013 the carrying value of all loans renegotiated was £779m

(2012 £104 6m)

d Credit nisk concentrations

The Group monitars concentrations of credit risk by geographic location and by industry sector The following tables show an
analysis of credit nsk by location and by sector The locanon for loans and advances 1s determined by reference to the location of
the borrower, and debt securities are recorded based on the location of the 1ssuer of the secunity In the current climate, exposures
1o the weaker eurozene economies are closely montored by senior management and the Group has no sovereign debt exposure
to penipheral eurozone economies

Within “Other Europe ' avallable-for-sale financial assets are £45 million of assets with exposure 1o the weaker eurozone countnes,
predominantly Ireland and Span, {2012 £53 mitlion) Of this, £37 million relates to a portfolio of residential mortgage backed
securities Each asset 1s top tier in its respective structure, benefiung from substantial credit support from the subordination of junior
notes and excess reserve balances The remaining £8 millon relates 1o collateralised loan obhgations which have some expesure to
the weaker economies

Leans to custorners include £1 1 milion of loans to the weaker eurozone economies (2012 £24 milhon), all of which have been subject
to close review The Group expects to realise the carrying value of these loans

The sector analysis 1s based on Global Industry Classification Standards and includes denvatives, loans and advances to banks loans and
advances to customers debt secunities commitments and guarantees
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22  Credit nsk (continued)

UK and
Channel Other US and

islands Europe Canada Other Total
Credst risk by location £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 31 March 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 837032 I - - 837043
Derwvatves 19 663 2853 - - 22516
Loans and advances to banks 6,383 38195 g88| 16435 70894
Leans and advances to customers 449797 134522 2340 128l& 599475
Available-for-sale financial assets — debt securities 69212 68,163 10710 1546 149 631
Commitments and guarantees 4,778 7548 - - 12,326
Other financial assets 63759 59337 8101 12339 143536
Total 1,450,624 310,629 31,032 43,136 1,835,421
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at cantra) banks 543025 13 - - 543038
Dervatives 13422 11 é71 24 - 25117
Loans and advances to banks 53170 69123 8267 25885 156445
Loans and advances to customers 607 641 189023 15256 13589 825509
Avalable-for-sale financial assets — debt securtties 140 289 115618 10224 1 864 267995
Commitments and guarantees 43473 13280 - - 56753
Other financial assets 53714 31018 6198 13235 104 165
Total 1,454 734 429,745 39969 54,573 1,979,022
Campany
At 31 March 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 837032 - - - 837032
Dervatives 19663 2853 - - 22516
Loans and advances to banks 422 653 9881 19 10995
Leans and advances to customers 415513 136847 2340 12816 567516
Avalable-for-sale financial assets — debt securities 69212 68036 10710 1,546 149,504
Commiments and guarantees 141,457 7,548 - - 149,005
Other financial assets 56375 26031 7120 5712 95238
Total 1,539,674 241,968 30,051 20,113 | 831,806
Ar 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543025 - - - 543025
Dernvatives 13422 11671 24 - 2507
Loans and advances to banks 43710 33452 8267 577 F2006
Loans and advances to customers 574 160 190 064 15256 13589 793069
Availlable-for-sale financial assets — debt securites 140289 115493 10224 | 864 267870
Commitments and guarantees 241045 13363 - - 254408
Other financial assets 49268 17217 5010 7539 79034
Total 1,610,919 381,240 38,781 23569 2,054,529
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit nsk {continued)

2013 2012
Credit nisk by industry sector £'000 £'000
Group
Materials 44923 61370
Industrials 82584 89621
Consumer discretonary 82 889 %6714
Consumer staples 35495 70,800
Health care 15,097 15484
Financial (see below) 174622 353267
Real estate (see below) 252 159 377,258
IT and telecoms 26,977 21 324
Governments and Central Banks 900,271 698935
Private persons 22618 22212
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees 54250 67872
Tota! 1,691,885 | 874857
Company
Materials 41232 573174
Industrals 20652 39 464
Consumer discretionary 35062 53262
Consumer staples 12741 55442
Health care 9007 9620
Financial (see below) 114619 289729
Real estate (see below) 250841 376116
IT and telecoms 26977 21324
Governments and Central Banks 889070 686393
Prwate persons 22618 22212
Related party loans, commitments and guarantees 313749 365,059
Toral 1,736 568 1,975,495
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Financial Risk Management {(continued)
22 Credit rnisk (continued}

Financial and real estate sector exposures are analysed as follows

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Finznoial sector £'000 £000 £ 000 £'000
Short term interbank exposures 70894 156444 14994 92006
Investment grade securtties 42 890 59080 42890 59080
Cash/ivestrnent backed lending 3388 75503 3,388 75503
Finance companies 15,854 9,708 15,854 g708
Other 4] 596 52532 41493 52932
Tota! 174,622 353,267 114,619 289 229
Short term interbank lending and investment grade secunties are held for lquidity management purposes
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Real estate sector £ 000 £'000 £'000Q £000
Senior loans 195 556 309775 194238 308633
Subardinated/mezzanine loans 56603 67483 56603 67483
Total 252,159 377,258 250,841 376,116

Real estate exposures are generally supported by income generated by a large number of tenants from a wide vaniety of industry

sectors Exposures are broadly evenly split between the major property types {reiall, office and industrial) and are located
predominantly within the UK There are no matenal exposures to loans with elements of development financing

23 Market nsk

Market risk anses as a resuft of the Group's actvties In interest rate currency, equity and debt markets and compnses interest rate,
foreign exchange and equity and debt price nsk. During the year, exposure to market nsk has continued 1o be small in relation to
capital, as trading actmties have been focused on servicing client requirements rather than on proprietary nsk-taking Market nsk

ansing in the Company's subsidiary undertakings 1s immatenal

Limits on market nsk exposure are set by the Group Assets and Liabilities Committee Monitonng of market risk hmits and

determination of trading profits are undertaken daly independently of the dealing area Risk hmits are complemented by other
measures and controls, Including stress tesung to estmate the losses that could occur when markets behave in unusually volatile

ways and with little lquidrty

Market rnisks associated with treasury and equity positions are described below with a description of nisk management and the levels

of nsk,
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

23 Market nsk (continued)

Equities

The Group has exposure to equity price nsk through holdings of equity investments Each positien 1s approved by senior
managerneni and 15 monitored on an individual basis The table below shows the Group's equity prce nisk by location

UK and
Channel Other US and
Islands Europe Canada Totai

Equity price risk by locauon £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Group
At 31 March 2013
Equity mvestments 51680 47880 511 100071
At 31 March 2012
Equrty investments 53512 5443 601 108544
Company
At 31 March 2013
Equity nvestmeris 50630 47880 511 9% 02
At 3| March 2012
Equrty investments 52104 54431 601 107 136

The equity exposure to “other Europe consists prinaipally of minonty investments held in other Rothschild Group companies

If the price of all the equities were to fall by 5 per cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the income
statement of £ril and a post-tax charge 10 equity of £3.853.000 (2012 £nil and £4,125,000 respecuvely) and for the Company
there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement of £nil and a post-tax charge wo equrty of £3,812,000 (2012 £nil

and £4,071,000 respectively) Sirmilarly, if the price of all the equities and of those equities on which dervative instruments are
dependent were 10 nise by 5 per cent. then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the income statement of £nil and a
post-tax credit to equity of £3.853000 (2012 £ri and £4 125000 respecuvely) and for the Company there would be a post-tax
credit to the Income statement of £ril and a post-tax credit to the equity of £3812,000 (2012 £nd and £4 Q71 000 respectrvely)
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

23 Market rnisk (continued)

Currency risk

The table below summarises net exposure to foreign currency exchange rate nsk measured by reference to the foreign currency
exposures of monetary assets and habilities after taking account of positions in dervatives

Group Company
Leng/(Short) Long/(Short)
2013 2012 013 2012
£000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
5% 7205 6624 4 (587)
Euro (26) 1821 (33) | 821
Other 7,153 6233 152 (1515)

If the value of these currencies fell by 5 per cent aganst sterling, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the
income statement of £552,000 (2012 £558000 ) and for the Company there would be a post-tax charge to the income statement
of £5,000 (2012 post-tax gan of £11,000)

If the value of these currencies rose by 5 per cent against sterhing then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the
income statement of £552,000 (2012 £558,000) and for the Company there would be a post-tax credit to the income statement
of £5,000 (2012 post-tax charge £11,000)

Interest rate risk

The following table summarnises exposure to Interest rate nsk by showing the impact on the far value of interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, and of interest rate dervatives, if base interest rates in each currency shown moved up by | per cent. This table includes all
interest rate risk, including that within the treasury and banking businesses and also the structural interest rate exposure that arose
from the reinvestment of shareholders’ funds

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
‘ 709 (673) 774 {483)
Us$ 84 329 84 329
Euro 220 645 220 £45

24  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s defined as the risk that an entity cannot meet ris cash cbligations as they fall due Liquidity nsk anses prinapally from
the mismatch of contractual maturities of assets and habilities inherent n the business including contingent labilities

The Group 1s subject to both zn internal liquidity policy, which has been reviewed and approved by the Group Assets and Liabilities
Committee, and external regulatery requirements  Liquidity 1s measured on a behaviourally adjusted basis and on a stressed

basis The stressed behaviour of assets and labilties can in certan scenarios, be more adverse than ther contractual maturity (for
example, loans advanced to customers may not be repad on thewr contractual maturity dates)

Liquidity 1s monitored daily independently of the front office Treasury staff responsible for day-to-day hquidity management

The Group measures rts iquidity nsk quantitatively against a Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR ") imit in ine with the reguirements of
the regulator's hquidity regime The LCR considers the Group's eligible “Buffer” assets against the curnulative net cash flows payable
under its most severe stress test Only those assets of the highest quality can be treated as eligble for inclusion in the LCR

The Group’s mternal lquidity policy requires it to keep an LCR 10 excess of 100% at the |-month time honizon At 31 March 2013,
the LCR was significantly in excess of both this internal limit and regulatory requirements

The tables below analyse the Group's financial assets and labilities based on contractual matunty
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
24 Liquidity risk (continued)

Demand/ No fixed

next day 2 days-3m 3m-lyr > |yr maturity Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 3| March 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 837043 - - - - 837043
Loans and advances to banks 44545 22,180 - 4165 - 70894
Dervatives 15 5528 2336 13617 - 22516
Loans and advances 1o customers 73408 120241 138120 292002 (24.29¢) 599475
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - 990 25421 123220 100071 249702
Other financial assets S0 122635 20705 106 - 143536
Total 955,105 272,574 186,602 433,110 75,775 1,923,166
Deposits by banks 308 131 28 5816 - - 313975
Customer deposits 48949 294688 191,865 396725 - 932227
Dervatives | 1 206 884 1450 - 3541
Cther financial habilties - 15055 10257 2132 - 27444
Total 357,081 310,977 208,822 400307 - 1,277,187
At 3| March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543038 - - - - 543038
Loans and advances to banks 110330 41544 £80 3891 - 156 445
Denvatives | 365 1227 31878 18643 - 25117
Laans and advances 1o customers 34520 209876 198 B&6 412058 (29811) 825509
Avalable-for-sale financial assets - 124951 983 142051 108544 376,539
Other financial assets 1,793 100 687 1613 72 - 104 165
Total 691 050 478,295 206,020 576715 78,733 2,030,813
Deposits by banks 160787 8516 8873 - - 178176
Customer deposits 74 640 237337 90347 707767 - 110091
Derwatives - 1258 614 2494 - 4366
Debt securties in issue 86113 58 604 - - - 144717
Other financial liabilities | 634 11292 - - - 12926
Total 323.174 317,007 99834 710261 - 1,450,276
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
24 Liquidity nisk (continued)

Demand/ No fixed

next day 2 days -3m Im-lyr > lyr maturity Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2013
Cash and batances at central banks 837032 - - - - 837032
Loans and advances to banks 10995 - - - - 10,995
Derwvatives 15 6528 2356 13647 - 22516
Loans and advances 1o customers 73668 105 845 96 668 34711 (23376) 567516
Awallabte-for-sale financial assets - 90 25421 123093 99021 248525
Other financial assets - 86003 2235 - - 95238
Total 921,710 199,366 133,680 451,421 75,645 1,781,822
Deposits by banks 308115 28 4503 - - 312,646
Customer deposits 57753 294 687 191 865 396715 - 941030
Dervatves | 1 206 864 1450 - 3541
Other financial habitties -~ 12754 9204 - - 21958
Total 365,869 308 675 206,456 398,175 - 1,279,175
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543005 - - - - 543025
Loans and advances to banks 58488 33518 - - - 92006
Derwvatives | 369 1,227 3878 18643 - 25117
l.oans and advances to customers 34520 195711 176545 415099 (28 806) 793069
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - 124961 983 141 926 107 136 375006
Orher financal assets | 667 77,367 - - - 79,034
Toual 639069 432,784 181,406 575 668 78,330 | 907,257
Deposrts by banks 160787 8516 8873 - - 178 176
Customer deposits 90799 295951 90 346 707767 - | 184853
Derwvatves - I 258 614 2494 - 4,366
Debt securtbies in 1ssue 85113 - - - - 85113
Other financial habilities 1 634 11235 - - - 12869
Total 339,333 316,960 99833 710,261 - 1,466,387
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

25 Matunity of financial habilities

The following tables show undiscounted contractual cash flows, including interest, payable by the Group and the Company on
financial labiliies, analysed by remaiming contraciual matunty at the balance sheet date Loan commitments and guarantees are
included at the earliest date they can be drawn down ar called upon This table does not reflect the quidity position of the Group

or Campany

Demand/ 2 days -3m

next day Im-lyr lyr-Syr > Syr Toral
Group £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £000
At 3| March 2013
Deposits by banks 308 143 56 5879 - - 314,078
Customer deposits 48953 315010 216,095 425 134 - 1,005292
Cther labilties - 15055 10257 2132 - 27444
Total 357,096 330,221 232231 427,266 - 1,346,814
Loan commitments and guarantees - 12,326 - - - 12 326
At 31 March 2012
Deposits by banks 160 80O 8574 9149 92 - 178615
Customer deposits 74891 219924 106930 729278 40322 | 171345
Debt securiues i issue 86120 58612 - - - 144732
Crther liabilities | 634 14292 - - - 12926
Total 323445 298,402 116,079 729370 40,322 1507.618
Loan commitments and guarantees - 56,753 - - - 56,753
Company
At 31 March 2013
Deposits by banks 308 127 56 4566 - - 312749
Customer deposrs 57757 315409 216095 425 134 - 1014095
Other labilities - 12754 9204 - - 21958
Total 365,884 327919 229,865 425,134 - 1,348,802
Loan commitments and guarantees - 149,005 - - - 149,005
At 31 March 2012
Deposits by banks 160 800 8574 9,149 92 - 178615
Customer deposits 91070 278536 106930 729278 40322 1246 136
Debt securrties in issue 86120 - - - - 86120
Cther habilities | 634 11235 - - - 12 869
Toual 339,624 298,345 116,079 729 370 40,322 1,523,740
Loan commitments and guarantees - 254,408 - - - 254,408

Page 46 | N M Rothschdd & Sons Limned | Registered Number 925279



© 0 000 00 OO O 6 0600 0606000000060 0 00900600000

Notes to the Financial Statements

{forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

26 Capital management
The Companys caprial management pohcy 1s 10 ensure that it is strongly capitalised and complhant with regulatory requiremenits

Untit 31 March 2013 the Company's regufator was the Finangial Services Authonty (“FSA'} who set and monrtored capital
requirements for UK regulated financial institutions Since | April 2013, this responsibility transferred to the Prudential Regulation
Authorrty ("PRA"} A firm's mimimum regulatory capital is derived from a combinauon of the requirements frem Pilfar | and Pillar
2 rules Pillar | sets out the minimum capital requirements required to meet credit, market and operational risk. Pillar 2 lays down
a supervisory review process to evaluate an institution's own intemnal process to assess 1ts own capital needs including capital for
risks not covered by Pillar | The credit risk capital regurement that the Campany and certain other subsidiaries which are part
of its solo-consolidated group. are reguired to hold 1s largely determined by their balance sheets and off-balance sheet positions
weighted according 1o the credit rating and type of exposure to counterparties Processes are in place to ensure comphance with
the minimum capital requirements

An annual Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP™ which 15 subject to regulator review, is also undertaken to
review the risks and caprtal requirements of the business The Groups risk management processes are designed to ensure that afl
risks are 1dentfied and that they are covered by caprtal or other appropnate measures

The table below summarses the composiion of regulatory capital for the solo-consolidated group at 31 March, as reported
1o the repulator

1013 2012
£m £m

Tier | capital
Called up share caprtal 577 577
Share premiurm account 979 979
Retaned earrings and other reserves 27 2248
Pension fund valuation adjustment %56 296
Deductions from ter | capnal 50 (47}
Total er | capital 402 9 405 3

Tier 2 capatal
Perpetual subordinated notes 1243 1243
Collectrve provisions 243 217
Cther tems - 03
Deductions from tier 2 caprtal - -
Total ver 2 capital 148 6 1543
Total ver | & 2 capital 5515 5596
Deductons from total of ter | and wer 2 capnal* (1556) (164 4)
Capital Resources 3959 3952

* Deductions from total ter | and tier 2 caprtal arise from equity or loan investments n/to subsidiaries or other related parties
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction For financial instruments carred at far value, market prices or rates are used to determine that fair value
where an active market exists (such as a recogrised exchange), as it is the best ewidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.
Market prices are not, however avallable for certain financial assets and liabitties held or issued by the Group Where no active
market price or rate s avaitable, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuauon techniques, using Inputs based on
market conditions existing at the balance sheet date The valuation may be derved from quotations receved from vanous sources
Where the market 15 liquid, the quotations may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions

Valuation techniques are generally applied to over the counter dervative transactions and unlisted debt and equity securties

The most frequently apphed pnoing models and valuation techriques include discounted cashflow techriques and eption valuation
models The values derved from applying these techmiques are significantly affected by judgements made on the choice of valuation
model used and the assumptions made concerming factors such as the amounts and timing of future cashflows discount rates,
volatlity and credit quality

The methods adopted to determine the farr value of each type of financial asset or lability are summarised below

8 Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and deposits by banks The far values of these instruments
are matenally the same as their carrying values due to their short term nature

= Loans and advances to customers have been reviewed and their terms and pricing compared to recent similar transactions
Where a matenal difference in terms andfor pricing has been observed or where there 15 any other indication that the fair
value of the asset differs matenally from its carrying value, the disclosed fair value has been adjusted accordingly

w  Repurchase agreements and amounts due to customers The fair values of these instrumenis are deterrmined by discounting
the future cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for the appropnate credit spread

»  Debt securities in 1ssue Fair value 1s determined using quoted market prices where avallable, or by discounting the future
cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for the appropnate credit spread

»  Other financial assets and liabihties Farr value 1s considered to be the same as carrying value for these assets

®  Dervatives and available-for-sale finanaal assets are carried in the balance sheet at far value usually determined using market
prices or valuations provided by third parties Debt securities or unlisted equity securities for which no price 1s avallable are
valued by discounting expected future cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for approprate credit spreads
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 599 475 561735 825509 767038
Financial habihties
Deposits by banks 313975 313975 178 176 178 176
Due to customers 932227 945 977 1110091 1119091
Debt securtes in 1ssue - - 144717 144 731
Orther financial habidities 22020 22020 7612 7612
Company
Financial assets
Leans and advances to customers 567516 529776 793069 736223
Financial habihties
Deposits by banks 312,646 312646 178,176 178,176
Due to customers 941030 954780 1184863 1191616
Debt securities in 1ssue - - 86113 86127
Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
Carrying value Measured

equal to using

fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Ac 31 March 2013
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading | 409 54 | 355 -
Financizl assets held for nsk management purposes 21107 - 21407 -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 249 702 124 651 51274 73767
Total 272,218 124.715 73.736 73.767
Financal hatwinies
Financial habilties held for trading | 778 - | 778 -
Financial habiliues held for risk management purposes 1763 - | 763 -
Other financial habilrues 5424 - 5424 -
Toral 8,965 - 8,955 -
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {(continued)

Carrying value Measured
equal o using
fair value Level | Leve! 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At 31 March 2012
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 7069 47 7022 -
Financial assets held for rsk management purposes 23045 - 23045 -
Avallable-for-sale financal assets 376539 242 960 52155 81,424
Total 406 653 243,007 821222 81,424
Financial habilives
Financial habdies held for trading 2220 - 2220 -
Finangial hiabiities held for nsk management purposes 2146 - 2146 -
Other financial habilties 5314 - 5314 -
Total 9,680 - 9 680 -
Company
At 3] March 2013
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 1 409 54 1355 -
Financial assets held for nsk management purposes 20107 - 20107 -
Availlable-for-sale financial assets 248525 123,484 51274 73767
Total 271,041 123,538 73,736 73,767
Financial habiliues
Financial habilibes held for trading | 778 - 1 778 -
Financal habilies held for rsk management purposes | 763 - | 763 -
Total 3,541 - 3541 -
At 31 March 2012
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 7069 47 7022 -
Finaneial assets held for nsk management purposes 23045 - 23045 -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 375006 241427 52155 81 424
Total 405 120 24| 474 82,222 81,424
Financial habthtes
Financial iabetrues held for trading 2220 - 220 -
Financial liabies held for rsk management purposes 2146 - 2146 -
Total 4,366 - 4,366 -
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

Level | Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability esther directly (i as
prices) or indirectly (ie derved from market data to a significant extent) An example would be an instrument valued using a prce/
earnings muluple of a comparable quoted company

Leve! 3 Inputs for the asset or lizbility that are not based primanly on observable market data (uncbservable nputs) Typically
this will be used for instruments with uncertain cashflows and the valuation will therefore depend upon the expected cashflows,
estimated maturity and the discount factor used

Assets measured at fair value based on Level 3

There were no significant transfers between assets valued at Level | and at Level 2 in the yearThe movements in assets valued
using Level 3 valuation are as follows

Group and Company

01 2012
Available-for-sale financial assets £000 £'000
At | April 81,424 80 449
Total gains and (losses)
- N ncome statement (as 'other operating iNncome ) 407 (19¢)
- through other comprehensive Income {'change in fair value of assets dassified as available-for-sale ") (8281) 1202
Settlements {92) {119)
Exchange movements 309 &8
At 31 March 73,767 81 424

Total gains of £407,00C (2012 losses of £196,000) were included i the income statement in respect of assets held at the end of
the reporting period

A sensrtivity analysis has been performed an the cashflows of the assets valued with a Level 3 methodology These have been flexed
to assume that either 10 per cent more or |0 per cent less cash 1s uniformly recewved over the Iife of the investment The effect that
these vanatons woutd have on the fair value of the assets 1s summarised below

2013 2012
Group and Company £'000 £ 000
Current fair value 73767 81424
Cashflow +10% addiwon to fair value 7 364 8143
Cashflow -10% reduction in fair value 7364 8143
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4. Net Interest Income

2013 2012
£000 £'000
Interest and similar income
Loans and advances 60,585 71800
Available-for-sale financial assets 2009 4544
Cther 2 10
62,596 76,354
Interest expense and similar charges
Amounts due to barks and customers 40114 47131
Debt securhes in 1ssue 3753 I1827
43,867 58 958

Included within interest iIncome 15 £4 844,000 (2012 £5083 000) in respect of interest ncome accrued on impaired financal assets

5. Net Fee and Commission Income

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Fee and commission income

Banking and credit-related fees and commussions 2461 1332
Fees for advisory work and other services 371321 335215
Other fees 251258 16444
399 080 354,991

Fee and commission expense
Global financial advisory fees payable 29593 22497
Other fees payable 376 454
29,969 22,951

Global financial advisory fees payable represent fees paid to other members of the Rothschild Group where the Company has

worked n collaboration with another group company in a transacuon, or fees paid to any subcontracted parues cutside the

Rothschild Group
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6. Net Trading Income

2013 2012
£ 000 £°000
Foreign exchange gains 702 | 362
Irterest rate instruments — trading 04 334
Interest rate instruments — hedging 68 (219)
Far value movements - 1478
Equities - 3
1,474 2,958

Net trading income arises from movements 1n the fair value of financial assets held for trading and frorm hedging strategies The
following actvities give nse to net trading income

®  Trading in foreign exchange spot, forward and option contracts loans, interest rate futures, swaps and forward rate agreements
8 Holding equites for trading purposes

Fair value movements represent the changes in the fair value of synthetic CDO investments attributable to embedded
credrt dervatives

Gains and losses on the ineffective portion of designated hedging relationships are also recognised in net trading income

7. Other Operating Income

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Operating lease income 6519 6992
Rental Income 53 105
Dnrdend income 1715 1800
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 102 130
Profit on disposal of subsidianes 4 546
Gains less losses from loans and avallable-for-sale financial assets {1 859%) 2510
Other 4903 7856
1! 437 19939
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8. Operating Expenses

2013 2012
Note £000 £000
Staff costs 9 264387 251942
Administrative expenses &0060 68371
324,447 320313
The auditors remuneratian was as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Audrt fees relating to the Company 194 241
Audrt fees relating to subsidiary undertakings and other affibates 510 557
704 798
Remuneration payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit work was as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Audit-refated assurance services 43 43
Tax services 179 90
Other services 156 76
378 209
9. Staff Costs
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
Note £ 000 £'000 £000 £000
Salanes (excluding profit share) 93905 al 351 106503 62225
Social security costs 11741 7421 12072 7558
5taff benefits and other staff costs 20,439 11833 23904 16,269
Pension costs
- Defined benefit plans 22 5159 5003 2636 2487
— Defined contnbution plans 72 4994 3069 4094 2059
Post-retirement benefits 977 964 943 928
Staff costs (excluding profit share) 143,215 89,641 150,152 21,526
Directors and employees annual orofit share 121172 85728 101790 64751
Total staff costs 264387 175,369 251,942 156 277
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9. Staff Costs (continued)

The number of persons employed as at 31 March was as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Global Financial Advisory 638 363 &77 390
Banking and asset management 184 30 209 52
Support and other 242 242 239 239
1,064 635 1125 68i

The average number of persons employed during the year ended 31 March was as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Glabal Financial Advisory 658 377 718 412
Banking and asset management 185 30 219 54
Support and other 251 25) 233 233
1,094 658 1170 699

Long term incentive schemes

As part of s varizble pay strategy, the Group operates long term incentive schernes for the benefit of employees These schemnes
consist of deferred cash bonuses and, for certain key staff, deferred bonuses based on the share value of Rothschilds Continuation
Holdings AG ("RCH"), a parent of the Company

The cash awards are paid one two and three years after the year of the award, and the expense 1s recognised over the two, three
and four year pericds from the start of the year of the award to the date of payment These awards are paid on the condrion that
the recipient s still an employee of the Group

For certain key staff in posiions of control within the Company the deferred award 15 partly based on the future vaiue of a fixed
number of RCH shares The objective 15 to nk their reward with the performance of the Group In addition to the requirement to
remain employed by the Group, these awards may also be cancelled

® there s reasonzble evidence of employse misbehaviour or materal error, or

» the Company, ar the relevant business unit, suffers a material downturn in financial performance, or

» the Company or the relevant business uni, suffers a matenal falure of nsk management, or

s reasonable evidence comes to hght which calls into question the basis on which the onginal award was made

Deferred pay based an the value of RCH shares s accounted far as a cash-settled share based payrnent award The fair value of the
shares awarded 1s being spread aver the service period using the same principles as the other deferred awards and s booked 1n the
incormne staternent as part of the annual profit share charge

RCH shares are not quoted, but therr value 1s deterrmined when required by an independent valuation

A commiiment to employees exists in relation to deferred remuneration Seme amounts have not yet accrued because it relates to
future service periods The amount of potential future payments that have not yet accrued 15 £25 567000 {2012 £15.227,000)
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0. Tax

Tax charged to the Income statement

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Current tax
- Current peried 11784 5136
— Prior year adjustments 3102 {1 652}
Total current tax charge 14,886 3484
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of trming differences 6489 8206
— Prior year adjustments (4024) (1399)
Total deferred tax charge 2465 6,807
Total tax charged to income statement 17351 10291
Tax on ttems charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income

2013 2012

£'000 £ 000
Deferred tax on avalable-for-sale financial assets (84) (151
Currant 1ax on avallable-for-sale financial assets - (967)
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges (745) 508
Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses on defined beneiit pension schemes (945) (12359)
Deferred tax on the utitsation of tax losses 6995 -
Total tax charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income 5,251 (12,969)
Tax on tems credited to equity

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Current tax cn distnbutians to holders of perpetual instruments 2607 3165

The tax charged on income differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the standard 1ax rate as follows

2013 2012

£000 £'000
Profit before tax 47,952 34,922
Tax calculated at the UK corporation tax rate of 24% (2012 26%) i1508 3,080
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years 322) (3051)
Income from associate recorded net of tax in profit before tax - (567)
Nan tax deductible expenses 992 13432
Impact on deferred tax of corporation tax rate change | 661 2504
Effect of different tax rates in other countries 1 264 LIt
lncome not subject to tax (410) (486)
Previously unrecorded deferred tax now recognised (640) 812
Irrecoverable withholding tax i 599 -
Non tax deductible imparment provisions 2861 -
Other {262) {154)
Total tax charged to income statement 17,351 10291

Further information about deferred tax 1§ presented in note 21
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II. Loans and Advances

2013 2013 012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Loans and advances to banks
In¢ludedt in cash and cash equivatents* 65841 10721 151730 91834
Other 47/ - 4543 -
Acerued interest 274 274 172 172
708%4 10995 156,445 92,006
*Loans and advances to banks include reverse repurchase agreements of £mil (2012 £75 029 000)
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers — at amortised cost 675,068 839292 888471 852244
Loans and advances to customers heid for
trading — at far value - - 4997 4997
Allowance for credit losses (83 821) (80,440) (75 804) (72561)
Accrued interest 8228 8664 7,845 8389
599,475 567,516 825509 793,069
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as follows
2013 012
Group £000 £000
Gross investment in finance leases, receivable
| year or less 65125 52861
5 years or less but over | year 98 374 81499
Over 5 years 4794 3828
168,293 138,188
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (27 806) {22.399)
Net investment in finance leasas 140 487 115,789
The net investrment in finance leases may be analysed as follows
2003 2012
Group £ 000 £'000
| year or less 53906 44287
5 years or less but over | year 82196 65101
Over 5 years 4385 3401
140,487 115,789
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Il. Loans and Advances (continued)

The movement in the allowance for credit losses on loans and advances 1o customers 1s as follows

Group Company

Speafic  Collective Total Speafic  Collecuve Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At | April 2012 45,993 29,811 75,804 43755 28,806 72,561
Chargef{credit) to ncome staternent 17834 (5515) 12319 18867 (5,430) 13437
Amounts written off (6,210) - (6210} (6210 - 6210)
Recoveries 1357 - i 357 101 - 101
Exchange movements 551 - 551 55t - 551
At 31 March 2013 59,525 24,296 83,821 57 064 13,376 80,440
At { April 201 39,250 29,788 49,038 37163 28,806 65,969
Charge to Incame statement 11425 23 11448 1376t - 13761
Amounts written off (7203 - (7203) (6 856) - (6866)
Recovenes 3218 - 3218 394 - 394
Exchange mavements {697) - (697) (697) - (697)
At 31 March 2012 45,993 29,811 75 804 43,755 28 806 72 56!

Following the amendments to |AS 39 and IFRS 7 “Reclassification of Financial Assets”, on | July 2008 the Company transferred
from avallable-for-sale financial assets to loans and advances £347,582,000 of financial assets 1o which the definiion of loans and
advances would apply on the reclassification date On the reclassification date and on 31 March 2013 the Group had the financial
capacity to keep the loans concerned to their matunty date or for the foreseeable future The movements in the carryng value and

far value of the financial assets reclassified are as follows

2013 1012
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Carrying value of assets reclassified at | Apnl 155,752 216,921
Impairments {(297%) (3675)
Sale and redemptions (70341} (53605}
Repayment of revohang crednt facilties (1152} (1553}
Amortisation of frozen avalable-for-sale reserve 68532 5037
Exchange and other movements 2940 (7.373)
Carrying value of assets reclassified at 31 March 91,055 155,752
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[I. Loans and Advances (continued)

2013 2012
Group and Company £ 000 €000
Fair value of assets reclassified at | April 148,118 212,466
Sales and redemptions (70341) {53 605)
Repayment of revolving credit facilities (1152} {1.553)
Farr value movements i the period 7478 (1,829
Exchange and other mavements 2617 (7361)
Fair value of assets reclassified at 31 March 86720 148,118

As of the reclassification date the net effective interest rates, after associated funding costs, on reclassified financial assets was

225 per cent.

A revaluation gain of £10,454,000 would have been recognised in other comprehensive income in the year to 31 March 2013 had

the assets not been reclassified (2012 revaluation gain of £1 846,000)

After reclassification, the reclassified financial assets contributed the following amounts after associated funding costs, to profit

before tax.

2013 1012
£'000 £'000
Net interest Income 2187 2188
Impairment losses (2976} (3679)
Loss on disposals (1671} (275)
Loss before tax on reclassified financial assets (2 460) (1.762)

12. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Debt securities 159 134 159007 275024 274,899
Allowance for impairment (10574) (10,574 (10821 (10891)
Accrued interest | 071 1071 3862 3862
Total debt securities — at fair value 149,631 149,504 267 995 267 870
Equity securties 111397 110162 191 110403
Allowance for impairment (11,326) (re4n (3.367) (3267)
Total equity securities — at far value 100,071 99,021 108,544 107,136
Total avallable-for-sale financial assets 249,702 248,525 376,539 375,006
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12. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (continued)

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Campany Group Company
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Available-for-sale financial assets may be analysed as follows
Drebt securities
- Listed 145,024 149024 267,308 267308
~ Unlisted 607 480 687 562
Totzl debt securiues 149 6314 143,504 267 995 267,870
Equity securities
- Listed 28,042 27099 26729 25513
— Unlisted 72029 71922 818I5 81623
Total equity secunties 100071 99,021 108,544 107 136
Total available-for-sale financial assets 245,702 248,525 376539 375,006

Avallable-for-sale debt securtties of £1 1,853,000 (2012 £32 311 000) were pledged as securtty for habilites of the Company

Equrty securities include shares 1n Pans Orleans SCA, Third New Court Limized and Rothschild Helding AG fellow subsidiaries of
Rothschild Concordia SAS

The movement in the iImpairment allowance for available-for-sale financial assets 15 as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Debt securities
At | April 10891 10891 29,044 25,044
(Credt)/charge to income statement (409) (409) 1322 1322
Amounts written off - - {18956) (18956)
Exchange movemenis 92 92 519) (519)
At 31 March 10,574 10,574 10891 10,8%1
Equity secunes
At | Apnil 31367 3267 3,443 3.343
Charge to ncome statemant 7941 7856 - -
Exchange movements I8 18 (76) (76)
At 31 March 11,326 11,14} 3.367 3,267
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12. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (continued)

2013 2013 012 2012

Group Company Group Company

£ 000 £'000 £'000 £000

At 1 Apnil 376.53% 375,006 578,706 576,053
Addrtions 11051 +1,051 282186 282054
Disposals (sales and redemptions) (148,362) {148,362) (454 160) (453 340)
Gang/({losses) from changes in fair value 24,535 21808 (16576) (16151)
Movernent in allowance for impairment (7.642) (7557) (727) @2
Unwinding of discount (1748) (1 748) (6,157) (6157)
Mavement in accrued interest {2791) (2794) 813 813
Exchange differences 1 120 1,118 (7.546) {7.539)
At 31 March 149,702 248,525 376,539 375,006

13. Derivatives

The Group's use of financial instruments including dervatives, 1s set out in note 2 A derivative 15 a financial instrument, the value

of which 1s derved from the value of another financial Instrument, an index or some other vanable (the “underlying ) Typically the
underlying 15 an interest rate, a currency exchange rate or the price of a debt or equity security The majerity of derwative contracts
are negotiated as to amount, tenor and price between the Group and its counterparties, and are known as "over the counter’
("OTC") dervatives The remainder are standardised in terms of their amounts and settlement dates and are bought and sold in
organised markets and are known as exchange traded dervatives

Dervatve instruments are carred at fair value, shown i the balance sheet as separate totals of positive replacement values (assets)
and negative replacement values (habiites) Positive replacement values represent the cost to the Group of replacing all transacuons
with a fair value in the Group's favour if the counterparties default. Negative replacement values represent the cost to the Group's
counterparties of replacing all their transactions with the Group with a fair value in the counterparues’ favour if the Group were

to default. Positive and negative replacement values on different transactions are only netted if there 1s a legal nght of set-off, the
transactions are with the same counterparty and the cashflows will be settled on a net basis Changes in replacement values of
dervative Instruments are recognised in trading income unless they quahfy as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes

The Group uses the following derivative financial iInstruments for both trading and hedging purposes

®  Forward contracts and futures — contractual obligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at a specfied price
Forward contracts are OTC contracts, whereas futures are exchange traded derwvatives

= Interest rate swaps - transactions in which two parties exchange interest cashflows on a specified notonal amount for a
predetermined penod Most swaps are OTC instruments Interest rate swap contracts generally entall the contractual exchange
of fixed and floating rate interest payments in a single currency

®  Options — contractual agreements under which the seller grants the purchaser the nght but not the cbligation to buy or sell by
or at a future date a specified quantity of a financial instrument at a predetermined price The purchaser pays a premium to the
seller for this nght. Options may be transacted CTC or on a regulated exchange

Dervatives may be transacted for hedging or trading purposes The Group enters into dervatve transactions primanly for the
purpose of hedging exposures in the non-trading book The accounung treatment of hedge transactions depends on the nature
of the hedging relatonship and whether the hedge qualifies as such for accounting purposes Denvative transactions may qualify
as hedges for accounting purposes as either fair value or cash flow hedges Trading involves taking posiions wiih the intention of
profiting from changes in market varables such as interest rates
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[3. Derivatives (continued)
Fair Value Hedges

The Group's fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to protect aganst changes in the far value of fixed rate
lending, fixed rate debt secunties and fixed rate borrowing

The fair value of denvatives designated as fair value hedges at 31 March 2013 was £20461 000 (2012 £16 334,000} Far value
gans of £1,709000 (2012 gans of £16,833 000) on dervatives held in qualfying fair value hedging relationships are included n net
trading income Fair value losses of £1 641,000 (2012 losses of £17.052,060) which relate to changes in fair value of hedged items
attributable to the hedged risk, are also included in net trading income

Cash Flow Hedges

The Group 1s exposed 1o varability in future interest cash flows on non-trading assets and Iiabiltigs which receive or pay interest at
vanable rates

Gains and losses on the effective portion of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are recorded n other comprehensive
income Gans or losses on any ineffective portion of these swaps are recognised immediately in the incorne statement.

No profit or loss was recognised in the iIncome statement 1n respect of the inefflective portion of cash flaw hedges (2012 £ni)

The farr value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges at 31 March 2013 was alossof £1 117000 (2012 gan of £4565,000)
At 31 March 2013 an unrecognised fair value loss of £336000 (2012 gan of £2 655,000} associated with these derwatives has
remained deferred in shareholders’ equity and wall be transferred 1o the income statement when the hedged cashflows afiect profit
or loss Amounts relating to cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement during the period are included in net trading
Income

The schedule of cash flows hedged 15 as follows

<lyr 1-3 yrs 3-Syrs 5-10 yrs > 10 yrs
Group and Company £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
As at 31 March 2013
Cash inflows (assets) 211 298 - - -
As at 31 March 2012
Cash inflows (assets) 827 139 - - -
Nouonal principal Positive fair value Negative far value
2013 012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Group and Company
Contracts held for nsk management purposes
Dervatives designated as hedges
Far value interest rate swaps 628,775 821733 20980 18480 (519} (2 146)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 112980 175000 127 4,565 (1244) -
Other derwatives held for nisk management purposes
OTC interest rate options 11836 11671 - - - -
753,591 1,008,404 21,107 23,045 (1.763) {2 146)
Contracts held for trading purposes
Forward foregn exchange contracts 180479 414356 789 997 (1 101) (o)
Interest rate swaps 51585 26912 566 1028 (677) {1029)
Exchange traded interest rate futures 5932 5,629 54 47 - -
23799 446 897 1,409 072 (1778) {2.220)
991587 1,455 301 22516 25,117 (3541) (4 366)
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4. Other Assets

2013 2013 012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accounts recevable and prepayments 16203 78433 11539 83234
Accrued income 19795 3275 11421 | 875
Traded loans awarting settlfement 24467 24 467 1 667 I 667
Other 3780 3766 8775 5095
164,245 109,941 133,402 91871
Accounts receivable are net of allowances of £4,904,000 (2012 £3,420,000) Accrued income s net of allowances of £868 000
(2012 £nil}
I5. Investments in Associates
2013 2012
Group £000 £'000
At | April 38,510 40,121
Addtions | 768 506
Disposals - (3503)
Share of resubs (net of tax) 3039 3544
{Losses)/gains from changes in fair value (402} 711
Dwidends (1428 (2509)
Exchange differences 90 (730)
At 31 March 41,579 38510
The Group's interests i 1ts principal associated undertakings, which are unlisted, are as follows
2013 2012
Groups share of £'000 £000
Assets 149723 120286
Liabilies 108 144 81,776
Revenues 21,617 25,120
Results {net of tax) 3039 3514

The Company holds 2 9 38 per cent interest in Rothschild & Cie Banque, a French hmiied partnership, in which the Company

exercises a significant influence, which carres out banking activities in France

The Company also halds a 500 per cent interest in Quintus European Mezzanine Fund bimited Partnership, a Jersey imited

partnership that 15 an investrment vehicle for institutional investors Substantive “kick out” nghts granted to other interest holders
mean overall control of the fund does not rest with the Company and the investment continues to be classified as an investment

In an assoCiate Addiions dunng the year relate to an increase in the Company's investment in Quintus
The Group's interests in associates are held by the Company at histoncal cost of £38,379,000 (2012 £36611000 )
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6. Investments in Joint Ventures

The Group holds a 500 per cent interest n N ™M Rothschild Europe Partnerstup, an English partnership, and a 500 per cent interest
in Rothschild Eurcpe SNC, a French partnership These partnerships undertake financial advisory activities in conunental Europe
and are accounted for as jontly controlied entities in accordance with I1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures using the proportcnate
consolidaton method The Group's share of assets, liabiles, income and expenses of the partnerships 1$ as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Current assets 9825 7881
Current habilities 5254 4252
Income 13297 5415
Expenses 4975 7008
[7. Intangible Assets
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Group 000 £000 £'000
Cost at | April 2012 14778 9154 23932
Disposals - (137) {137}
At 31 March 2013 14,778 9017 23,795
Accumulated impairment losses and amortisation at | Apni 2012 - 1301 1301
Amaorusation charge - 1468 1 468
Impairment charge 2,500 - 1500
At 3| March 2013 1,500 1,769 5,269
Net book value at 3|1 March 2013 12,278 6,248 18526
Cost at | Aprl 201 | 14778 1,000 15778
Addrtions - 8154 B 154
At 31 March 2012 14778 9.154 23,932
Accumulated amortisation at | Aprl 2011 - 875 875
Amortisation charge - 426 426
At 31 March 2012 — 1,301 1,301
Net book value at 31 March 2012 14,778 7,853 22,631

Included within the cost of goodwll as at 31 March 201315 £9,786,000 (2012 £3 786,000) relating to the purchase of Lanebndge
Investment Management Limited n the year ended 31 March 2008 In assessing impairment of goodwill, the Group has used the latest
forecasts of Lanebridge Investment Management Limited for the periods to March 2018 which indicate a delay in the expected future
fee Income related to the tming of property sales An increased discount rate of |2 per cent (2012 10 per cent) was applied to
recognise the iIncreased uncertainty This analysis indicated that the goodwill was impaired and management have therefore concluded
that an impairment charge of £2,500,000 should be recognised in the year (2012 £nil) The remainder of goodwill relates to various
acquisitons within the Five Arrows Leasing Group

Other intangible assets relates mainly to servicing nghts recognised on the acquisibon of Elgin Caprtal LLP a company that prowvides
investment management services for various investment funds The present value of the future servicing nghts wall be amorused
over the servicing penod as the fees from servicing are recognised
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold  Cars fixtures and Computer

improvemnents fitungs equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Costat | Aprl 2012 50192 18951 33¢14 102257
Addtions 1.504 3487 378 5371
Disposals (107} (2,668} (730) (3 505)
Exchange differences 71 213 6l 345
At 31 March 2013 51,662 19,983 32,823 104 468
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2012 6 147 9,078 238%6 3912
Disposals (107) (2027 {726) (2860)
Depreciation charge 3286 2,38% 2297 7972
Exchange differences 55 59 50 164
At 31 March 2013 9,381 9,4%% 25517 44,397
Net book value at 31 March 2013 42 28t 10,484 7.306 60071
Cost at | April 201 | 29 482 24521 25092 79295
Additions 27830 3492 8544 39 846
Disposals (7 179) (8923) (421) (16523)
Exchange differences (141) {13%9) (101} (381)
At 31 March 2012 50,192 18 951 33,114 102 257
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 201 10631 14184 32751 47 566
Disposals (7179 (8012) (418) (15609)
Depreciation charge 2792 2990 | 634 7416
Exchange differances 973 {849 n (252)
At 3| March 2012 6 147 9,078 2389 39,121
Net book value at 31 March 2012 44,045 9,873 9,218 61,136

Included within the net book value of cars fixtures and fittungs for the Group as at 31 March 201315 £5 335,000 (2012 £5,266,000)

relating to assets |eased to customers under operating leases

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 65




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

18. Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)

Leasehold  Cars, fixtures and Computer
Improvements fitungs equipment Total
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost at | Aprl 2012 47081 1208 27784 76073
Addrtions | 469 297 201 1967
Disposals - (129} - (12%9)
At 31 March 2013 48 550 1376 27.985 77511
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2012 4029 835 19 647 24511t
Disposals - (124) - (124)
Depreciation charge 2886 103 1 747 4736
At 31 March 2013 6,915 814 21,394 29,123
Nec book vatue at 31 March 2013 41,635 562 6,591 48 788
Cost at | April 2011 26451 6328 20217 52996
Addtions 27809 290 7806 35905
Disposals (7 179) (5410) (23%) {12828)
At 31 March 2012 47,081 1,208 17,784 76,073
Accumulated depreciation at | Apri 201 | 8831 6054 18840 33725
Disposals 7179) (5410) (239) (12 828)
Depreciaton charge T 237y 191 I 046 3614
At 31 March 2012 4029 835 19,647 24,511
Net book value at 31 March 2012 43,052 373 8137 51,562
19. Debt Securities in Issue
013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Medwrn term floating rate notes - - 38355 -
Ceruficates of depostt in 1ssue - - 83365 83365
Accrued interest - - 2997 2748
- - 144717 86,113
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20. Other Liabilities

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Note £000 £ 000 £'000 £:000

Accounts payable 12,267 6781 113292 11235
Traded loans awarting settlement 15177 15177 1,634 1,634
Defined benefit persion habilities 22 100294 39091 98585 97 341
Cther liabilites 38256 | 088 27599 | 800
165,994 122 137 139,110 111010

21. Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are calculated on ali temporary differences under the habiiity method using an effective tax rate of 23 per cem
(2012 24 per cent) as this was the rate substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Further reductions to 21% by 2014 and
20% by 2015 have been announced but have not affected these finannial staternents The full effect of these antaipated changes will

depend on when the uming differences reverse

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | April 98,214 88,140 45,971 72,625
Recogrused in income
Income statement charge (2465) {41331) (6807) (3802)
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Defined benefit pension arrangements 945 838 12359 12450
Awvailable-for-sale securites
— Fair value measurement B4 10 151 17
Cash flow hedges
— Fair value measurement 715 715 (508) {508)
Tax losses utiised {6995) {6995) - -
Exchange differences 349 - (95) -
Other 2017 (n 7143 7358
At 31 March 92,864 78,426 98,214 88 140
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following tems
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£000 £:000 £000 £'000
Accelerated tax depreciauen 1076t 5297 10311 6137
Deferred profit share arrangements 30357 24 865 29340 24,312
Pension and other post-reurement benefits 22807 22791 23889 23,889
Available-for-sate securiues (337) (133) 17 605 17 884
Tax losses 25135 24322 15525 14922
Other temporary differences 4141 1284 | 544 996
92,864 78,426 9B 214 88,140

During the year deferred tax assets attributable to farr value movernents on avallable-for-sale debt securties have been

recategonsed to tax losses camed forward to reflect the corporaucn tax treatment.

N M Rothsctld & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 67



Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

21. Deferred Income Taxes {continued)

The deferred tax {charge)/credit in the income staterment compnses the following temporary differences

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £000 £000 £000

Accelerated tax depreciation 450 (840) 274 126
Deferred profit share arrangements BI7 553 (3220) (1071)
Availlable-for-sale securtties 58 58 162 162
Pensions and other post-retrement benefits (1977%) {1986} (2595} {2595}
Tax losses (1 688) {1 688) (804) {8C4)
Cther temporary differences {125} (428) (624) (620}
(2,465) (4,331) (6,807) (3.802)

Deductible temporary differences relating to unutiised tax losses within the Group for which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised are £351,000 (2012 £rul)

Deferred tax liabiliues have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitied earrings of certain
subsidiares and other interests as it 1s anticipated that such profits would qualify for exermption from UK taxauen The amount of
witholding taxes that would be payable should the retained earmings be remitied would be £mil (2012 £411,000)

22. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits

The Company s a member of a group pension scheme the NMR Pension Fund (“the Fund"), which 15 operated by the Company
for the benefit of employees of certan Rothschild group companies in the United Kingdom The Fund compnises a defined benefit
section, which closed to new entrants in Apnl 2003 and a defined contribution scheme established with effect from Apnl 2003 The
Company has unfunded obligations in respect of pensions and other post-retirernent benefits

The Group and the Company have adopted the revisions to IAS |9 which were published in December 2004 Actuarial gains
and losses are recogrised in full in the pernod in which they occur outside the Income statement through the statement of
comprehensive INCome

The latest formal actuaral valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2010 and has been updated for |AS |9 purposes
to 31 March 2013 by qualified independent actuanes As required by 1AS |9, the value of the defined benefit obligation and current
service cost have been measured using the projected unit credii method
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22. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The principal actuanal assumptions used as at the balance sheet date were as follows

Group and Company 2013 1012 20114
Discount rate 450% 480% 5.50%
Retall price inflavon 340% 330% 350%
Consumer price inflation 240% 230% 280%
Expected rate of salary increases 440% 430% 450%
Expected rate of Increase in pensions «n payment

Capped at 5 0% per annum 3130% 320% 340%
Capped at 2 5% per annum 220% 2720% 230%
Life expectancy of a pensioner aged 6C

Mate 279 278 278
Female 293 285 284
Life expectancy of a future pensioner aged 60 in 20 years time

Male 295 294 293
Female 293 293 292

Movement in defined benefit obhgation

203 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At | April 575,514 574270 507 149 505,896
Current service cost (net of contributions
pad by other plan participants) 3619 3514 3020 1871
Current service cost relating to other plan partioparits 968 968 1652 1,652
Interest cost 271288 27237 27384 27384
Actuarial losses 45,492 45285 55824 55823
Benefits pad (17.313) {16 893) (19751} (19551)
Past service costs - - 195 195
Exchange differences té - 41 -
At 31 March 635,584 634,381 575514 574,270
Movement in plan assets
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Ac | Apnil 476,929 476,919 456,308 456 308
Expected return on plan assets 25748 25,748 27963 17963
Actual less expected return on assets 33319 33319 (6399) (6399)
Contributions by the Group/Company 15639 15218 17,156 16956
Contributions by other plan particpants 968 968 | 652 1652
Benefits pad (17 313) {16893} (19751) {19.551)
Az 31 March 535,290 535,290 476,929 476,929
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22. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

At 31 March the fair value of plan assets compnsed

2013 2012

Group and Company £'000 £'Q000
Equities 189 124 62,086
Bonds 79878 70515
Gilts and cash 103 151 F11289
Property 19962 1989
Hedge funds 49 768 45965
PFl private equity and infrastructure 93407 85085
535,290 476,929

The expected return on assets for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 was 57 per cent (2012 64 per cent) The rate of return
i1s derved from the weighted average of the long term expected rates of return on the asset classes in the Trusiees' intended long
term investment strategy A deduction was then made from the expected return on assets for the expenses incurred in running the

Fund
The actual return on plan assets in the year was £59 | million (2012 £21 6 milien)

Armounts recognised in income statermnent.

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Current service cost 3619 3514 3020 2871
Interest cost 27288 27237 27 384 27 384
Expected return on plan assets (25,748) (25748) (27 963) (27963)
Past service costs 165 185
Total (included in staff costs) 9 5,159 5,003 2,636 2,487
Amounts recognised In the balance sheet for current and previous four periods are as follows
2013 2012 2011 1010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Present value of fund obligations 632,499 572052 503906 507 808 351751
Farr value of plan assets (535 290) {476929) (456 308) {422 803} (328807)
97.109 95123 47598 85,005 12 944
Present value of unfunded cbligations 3085 3462 3243 3770 3986
Balance sheet liabilicy 100,294 98,585 50,841 BB 775 16 930
Company
Present value of fund obiigations 632499 572052 503906 507 808 351751
Farr value of plan assets (535290) (476929) (456 308) (422 803) {328807)
97 209 95123 47,598 85,005 22,944
Present value of unfunded obligations 1882 2218 1990 2068 1902
Balance sheet habiity 99,091 97,341 43588 87,073 24,846
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22. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The expenence adjustments arising on the plan assets and labiites were as follows

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Group
Actual less expected return on assets 33319 {6399) 8373 69 327 (113472)
Expenence gains and losses arising on liabiliues {514) (7537} (6034) 2362 444
Company
Actual less expected return on assets 33319 (6 399) 81373 69 327 (113472)
Expenance gans and losses arsing on habilities {514) (7537} (6034) 2362 444
Amounts recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Company Group Company
£ 000 £'000 £000 £'000
Actuanal losses recognised in the year (12174 (1 1966) (62 224) (62 222)
Cumulative actuanal losses recogrused in the statemert of
comprehensive income (175,13%) {174951) {162965) (162 985)

ft1s estimated that total contributions of £157 milhon will be paid to the Fund 1n the year ending 31 March 2013 of which it is

estimated that the Company will pay £14 2 milhon

The highest paid director was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme

Defined contnbuuon schemes

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

Note £000 £000 £'000 £°000

Contributions paid 9 4994 3065 40594 2059

These amounts represent contributions to the defined contnibution secuon of the Fund and other defined contnbution

pension arrangemen‘cs

N M Rothschild & Sons Lirmited | Registered Number $25279 | Page 71



Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

23. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

2013 2013 2012 2012
Group Compary Group Company
£000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Guarantees
Guarantees and irevocable letters of credit 2399 129213 8913 192316
Commitments
Undrawn formal standby facirizes credd lines and other
commitments to lend 9927 19792 47840 62092

From time to time the Group 15 nvolved in judicial praceedings or receives clams arising from the conduct of its business Based
upcn avalable iInformation and, where appropriate, legzl advice the directors do not believe that there are any potential or actual
proceedings or other claims which will have a matenal adverse impact on the Group's financial position

Assets pledged

2013 2012
Group and Company £000 £'000
Investment securities 11853 32311

Assets are pledged as securtty over Euroclear overdraft facliues and as collateral to secure liabilites under sale and repurchase
agreements and borrowing facilities These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary 1o standard
lending and secunties borrowing and lending actsvities

24. Operating Lease Commitments

At 31 March 2013, the Group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for premises used pnmanly for
business purposes The significant prermises leases usually Include renewal options and escalation clauses in ine with general office
rental market conditions

Minimum commitments for non-cancellabte leases of premises and equipment are as follows

Premises Equipment

2013 2012 2013 2012
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Upto | year 15436 14425 237 234
Between | and 5 years 60,524 53,246 231 303
More than 5 years 2004%6 208601 - 28
276,456 276,272 468 565

Company
Up to | year 10,448 10187 - -
Between | and 5 years 42568 40585 - -
More than 5 years 192 486 197 398 - -
245,502 248,170 - -

Operating expenses nclude operating lease rentals of £13 892000 (2012 £16,798 000)
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25. Distributions

2013 0102
£000 £000

Other Equity Interests
Perpetual floating rate subordinated loan (US$(0C million) 699 575
Perpetual fixed rate subordinated loan (£75 milon) 6743 6780
Perpetual floating rate subordinated notes (€150 million) 31422 4817
10,864 12172
Tax credrt thereon (2607) (3 165)
8,257 9,007

Ordinary Shares

Dwvidends pad 13,000 18,000
21,257 27,007

The dwidends per ordinary share were 23p (2012 31p)

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse the following balances wath an onginal maturty of
less than three months

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Cash and balances at central banks 837043 837032 543038 543025
Loans and advances to banks 65 841 10721 151730 91834
902,884 847,753 694,768 634,859

27. Transactions with Related Parties

Group
Transactions wath key management personnel (and their connected persons) of the Group are as folfows

2013 2012
At 31 March £'000 £'000
Loans 6 3
Depaosits 1222 | 404

Key management personnel are the directors of the Company and of parent companies

Loans are made to directors for the purchase of trave! season tickets and are provided on an interest-free basis Deposits are taken
on normal commercizl terms
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27. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

2013 2012
£000 £'000
Key management personnel compensaton

Short term employee benefits 6712 5739
Post-reurement benefits i |
Other long term employee benefits 37 2567

Amounts recevable from related parues of the Group are as follows

2013 2012

Loans and Orther Loans and Other
advances assets advances assets
At 31 March £000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Amounts due frem parent companies 34329 806 37 666 275
Amounts due from joint ventures - 143 21 204
Amounts due from associated undertakings - 11028 - 6976
Amounts due from other related parties 8,125 14045 5956 26908

QOther related parties are fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS

Amounts recewvable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parues in respect of expenses incurred
on their behalf and services provided Loans are made in the crdinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as

comparable transactions with third parties

Amounts payable 1o related parties of the Group are as follows

2013 2012

Perpetual Other Perpetual Other

Deposits instruments hatiliues  Deposits instruments Irabiliues

At 31 March £'000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £'000

Amounts due to parent companies 2276 - 130 100 - 130

Amounts due to joint ventures 2110 - 127 5087 - -

Amounts due to asscciated undertakings 2626 - 11493 - - 5464

Amounts due to pension funds 1584 - - 1 551 - -
Amounts due to other related parties

— subordinated - 72610 - - 72610 -

- other 379 121 - 7407 303375 - 499

Amounts payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of business and on substantially

the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Guarantees from related parties of the Group are as follows

2013 2012
At 31 March £'000 £ 000
Guarantees recerved from other related parties 21465 54672

The Group has receved guarantees from a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer loans and

avalable-for-sale securities
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27. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Armounts recognised i the income statement of the Group in respect of refated party transacuons are as follows

Parent Jone Associated Pension  Other related

companies ventures  undertakings funds parues Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2013
Interest recevable 1014 - - - 137 I 151
Interest payable (48) (20) 47N ) (12) (4.332) (4,45%)
Fees and commussions recenvable 5000 - 5535 - 3807 14342
Fees and commuissions payable - (58586) {1 0t4) - (10234) (17.104)
Dmdend income 725 2500 1426 - 954 5605
Rent payable - - - - {9 405) (9 405)
Recoverable expenses 750 ~ | 541 - 4484 6775

2012
Interest recenable 1073 - - - 27 1100
Interest payable (3%} (28) (35) (n (2336) (2449
Fees and commussions recenvable 5000 - 7 800 - 3062 15 862
Fees and commissions payable - (3551) {5700} - (9 674) (18925)
Dmadend income 706 - 2,509 - 1058 4273
Rent payable - - - - (8.984) (8984)
Recoverable expenses - 82 (217} - 5532 5397

Fees and commussions recevable/payable relate 10 transactions where the Group has worked i coflaboration with related partes
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27. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Company
Amounts recevable from related parties of the Company are as follows
2013 2012
Loans and Other Loans and Other
advances assets advances assets
Az 31 March £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts due from parent companigs 34329 806 37,665 275
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 122,819 19073 98488 3961
Amounts due from joint ventures - 297 - 407
Amounts due from associated undertakings - 2021 - 3075
Amounts due from other related partues 8125 13710 5956 26817

Amounts recenvable include loans to relaied partes and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses incurred
on therr behalf and services provided Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as

comparable transactions with third partes

Amounts payable to related parties of the Company are as follows

2013 2012
Perpetual Other Perpetual Other
Deposits instrutments habilities Deposits instruments habilities
At 31 March £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Amounts due to parent companies 2276 - 130 100 - 130
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings
— subordinated - 51725 - - 51725 -
— other 6696 - 7281 69 684 - 6634
Amounts due to jont vertures 4219 - - 10174 - -
Amounts due to associated undertakings - - 797 - - | 60%
Amounts due 1o pension funds I 584 - - I 551 - -
Amounts due to other related parues
- subordinated - 72610 - - 724610 -
- other 379121 - 5978 303375 - 3759

Amounis payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of business and on substantially

the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Guarantees made on behall of and recewed from related parties of the Company are as fellows

2013 2012
At 31 March £ 000 £000
Guarantees made on behalf of subsidiary undertakings 126,814 183404
Guarantees recewved from other related parties 21 465 54672
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27. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Company (continued)

The Company has guaranteed £126 814,000 (2012 £125048,000) of perpetual flcating rate subordinated notes and £ril (2012
£58 355,000} of medium term notes ssued by Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC The 1ssue proceeds have been placed on
deposit with the Company on terms similar to those of the notes issued

The Company has receved guarantees from a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer Joans
and avalable-for-sale securiues

Commitments provided to related parties of the Company are as follows

2013 2012
At 31 March £'000 £'000
Undrawn credit commitments 9685 14252

The Company has entered into a lease agreement with a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS for the rental of office
space The lease agreement exprres in 2035 and 15 on normal commeraial terms

Amounts recogrised in the income statement of the Company in respect of related party transactions are as follows

Other
Parent  Subsrdiary Jont  Associated Pension related
companies  undertakings ventures  underakings funds parties Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2013
Interest recevable 1014 3646 - - ~ 137 4797
interest payable {48) (55) (40) - (12) (4332) {(4487)
Fees and commissions recenvable 5000 5633 - 613 - 3801 15047
Fees and commissions payable - (8231) (171 (932) - (10234} (31 108)
Dwidend incorme 725 18750 5,000 1 426 - 954 26835
Rent payable - - - - - (2 405) {3 405}
Recoverable expenses 750 (3404) - 713 - 556% 3628
2012
Interest recewable 1073 3224 - - - 27 4324
Interest payable (39) (3392) (55) - (n {2334) (5833
Fees and commissians recervable 5000 736 - t 02l - 3062 9819
Fees and commissions payable - (6527) (7 102y (5.081) - (9 674) (28,384)
Dwadend income 706 18300 - 2509 - 1058 22573
Rent payable - - - - - (8984) (8984)
Recoverable expenses - (3451) - 744 - 6072 3365

Fees and commissions recervable/payable relate to transactions where the Company has worked in collaboration with other group comparnies,
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28. Non-controlling Interests

2013 2012

£'000 £'000

At | April 18,593 18,138

Profit attributable to non-controling interests 4424 6,892

Actuarial losses (82) (50}

Dradends (7 996) {5,269}

Exchange 242 {1118}

At 31 March 15,18 18,593

29. Share Capital

2013 2012

Authorised 19% 900 000 199 300000

Allotted called up and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each 57 654 551 57654551
30. Perpetual Instruments

2013 2013 2012 2012

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000

Perpetual Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 9% (£75 million) 48750 48750 48750 48750

Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€150 mulkon) 51735 51725 51725 51725

Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$ 100 million) 23860 23860 23 860 23860

At 31 March 124,335 124,335 124,335 124,335
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31. Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are detalled below All the principal subsidiary undertakings are registered
in England and Wales except where otherwise indicated The Company's remaining subsidiary undertakings are not material and
accordingly no disclosure has been made in respect of these entities

Percentage held
Feve Arrows Leasing Group Limited {Lease portfolio management) 100
Five Arrows Leasing Limited (Asset finance) 100
State Securities Ple (Asset finance) 100
Specialist Fleet Services Finance Limrted (Contract hire and maintenance} 100
City Business Finance Limited {Asset Finance) 100
Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC (Finance company) 00
Lanebndge Investment Management Limited (Property investment management) 100
Elgin Caprtal LLP (fovestment fund management serices) 100
Rathschild Europe BV {Financial advisory company — incorporated in the Netherlands) ) 50
which owns the following subsidiaries
Rothschild GmbH {Financal advisory company — incerporated in Germany) 100
Rothschild SpA (Financial advisory company — incorporated in ltaly) 90
RCF Polska sp zoo (Financial advisory company ~ incorperated in Poland) 100
Rothschild Portugal Limitada (Financial advisory company - incorporated in Portugal) 100
RCF (Russiz) BV (Financial advisory company — ncorporated n Russia) 100
Rothschild SA (Financial advisory company — incorporated in Spain) 98
Rothschuld {Middle East) Limited (Financial adwisory company ~ incorporated in Dubai) 100
Rothschild Australa Limited {Fnancial advisory company — ncorporated in Australia) 100
Arrow Capital Limited (Investment holding company — incorporated in Australia) - “ {00

The historical cost of the invesiments in subsidiary undertalangs was £43 547 000 (2012 £43 547,000
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32. Parent Undertaking and Ultimate Holding Company

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consohdated i that headed by Rothschild Concordia SAS, incorporated

in France The smalflest group in which they are consolidated s that headed by Pans Orleans SCA, a French public limited

partnership The accounts are avallable on Pans Orleans web-site at www pans-orleans com

33. Remuneration of Directors

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 1522 1799
Amounts recervable under long term profit share schemes 428 422

2,350 2,221
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes | -

2,351 2,221
The emoluments of the highest pad director were £1 235000 {2012 £1,085,000)

2013 2012

Reurement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under
Money purchase schemes

Defined benefit schemes

34. Events After the Reporting Period

After the balance sheet date, the Company and certan subsiciaries entered into a trust arrangement for the benefit of the

NMR Pension Fund The trust arrangement gives the pension fund secunty over certain Group assets which would provide up to
£50 rmifhon of value 1o the NMR Pension Fund in the event that speciic financial triggers are breached The financial tniggers relate
to the Group's ongoing viability and any breach s therefore considered extremely unlikely The Group retains control of the assets
and there will be no change of treatment in the financial statements with any income continuing to be recognised in the Groups

results The trust agreement expires on 30 September 2016
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Australia

Rothschild Austraha Limited

level 41, 50 Bridge Street
Sydney NSW 2000, Australia
Telephone +61 ()2 9323 2000
Facsimile +61 (0)2 9323 2040

Level 21 120 Colling Street
Melbourne,Victona 3000 Australia
Telephone +61 (0)3 9656 4600
Facsimile +61 {0)3 9656 4350

Belgium

Rothschild Belgique

Succursale de Rothschild & Cie Banque
Avenue Loutse, | 66

1050 Bruxelles

Telephone +32 {0)2 627 77 30
Facsimile +32 (0)2 627 77 59

Brazil

Rothschild (Brasil) Ltda

Av Brigadeiro Faria Lima 2055
18th Floor Jardim Paulistano
01451-000 Sao Paulo, Braz|
Telephone +55 (0) 11 3039 5828
Facamile +55 (0)1 1 303% 5826
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Canada

Rothschild {Canada) Limited

1002 rue Sherbrooke Quest
Bureau 2300 Montréal, Quebec
Canada H3A 3Lé

Telephone +1 514 8B40 1016
Facsimile +1 514 840 10!5

Brookfield Place

TD Canada Trust Tower

161 Bay Street, Suite 3150
PO Box 206, Toronto
Onrtang, Canada MS) 251
Telephone +1 416 36% 9600
Facamile +1 416 B64 1261

Rothschild Canada Inc

Eigth Avenue Place

1910, 525 — Bth Avenue SW
Calgary Alberta

CanadaT2P iG]

Telephone +1 403 537 6300
Facsimile +1 403 537 6389

Channel Islands

Rothschild Bank International Limited

St Julian's Court, St Julian’s Avenue
St. Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY! 3BP
Telephone +44 (0)1481 713713
Facsimile +44 (0) 1481 727705

Rothschild Bank (Cl) Limited

St Jubans Court St Julan's Avenue
St Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY | 3BP
Telephone +44 (0)1481 713713
Facsimile +44 (Y1481 711272

Rothschild Trust Guernsey Limited

St Juban's Court, St Julian's Avenue
St Peter Port Guernsey

Channel Islands GY | 6AX
Telephone +44 (0)1481 707800
Facsimie +44 (0) 1481 712586
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China

Rothschild China Holding AG

Beiing Representatve Office

Room 912A, Winland Internauonal
Finance Center, No 7 Finance Street
Xicheng District, Beging 100033
Peopie's Republic of China
Telephone +86 10 6321 2300
Facsimile +86 10 6655 5880

Shanghat Representative Office
Suite 3207 Tower 2 Plaza 66
1266 Nan Jing Xi Lu Road
Shanghar 200040

People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 21 6288 1528
Facsimile +86 21 6288 1517

Rothschild (Hong Kong) Limited
Rothschild Wealth Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

| 6/F Alexandra House

|8 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +852 2525 5333
Facsimile +852 2868 1728

Rothschild & Sons Financial Advisory

Services (Beying) Co Ltd

F9 10 Winland International

Finance Center, No 7 Finance Street
Xicheng Disinct. Being 100033
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +8610 6321 2900
Facsimile +8610 6655 5880

France

Rothschitd Concordia SAS
Paris Orléans SCA

23 bis avenue de Messine
75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0} 5377 6510
Facsimite +33 (0)1 4563 8528

Rothschild & Cie Banque

29 avenue de Messine

75008 Pans France

Telephone +33 (0) | 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 {0)1 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie

23 bis avenue de Messine
75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0) ) 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 (0)1 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie Gestion

29 avenue de Messine

75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0) | 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 (0} 4074 4969

Germany

Rothschild GmbH
Rothschild Vermogensverwaltungs-GmbH

Borsenstralle 2-4
60313 Frankiurt am Main Germany

Telephone +49 (0)69 4080 2600

Facsimule +49 (0)69 4080 2655
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India

Rothschild (India) Private Limited

103, Ist Floor, Piramal Tower
Penninsula Corporate Park
Ganpatrac Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai 400 013 India

Telephone +91 (0)22 4081 7000
Facsimile +91 (0)22 4081 7001

Indonesia

PT Rothschild Indonesia

Indonesia Stock Exchange Bullding
Tower | 15th Floor

JIn Jend Sudirman Kav 52-53
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia
Telephone +62 (0)2+ 515 3588
Facsimile +62 (0)21 5i5 3589

Israel

Rothschild Israel

Rothschild Bivd 32

Tel Aviv 6688210, Israel
Telephone +972 72 220 4100
Facsimile +972 72 220 4106

Italy

Rothschild SpA

Via Santa Radegonda 8
20121 Milan, haly
Telephone +39 02 7244 31
Facsimile +39 02 7244 3310
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Japan

Rothschild Bank AG

Tokyo Representative Office
20F Kamiyacho MT Building
4-3-20Toranomen

Minato-ku Tokyo 105-001, Japan
Telephone +81 (0)3 5408 8045
Facsimile +81 (0)3 5408 8048

Luxembourg

Five Arrows Managers SARL

3 rue Goethe

L-1637 Luxembourg
Luxembourg

Telephone +352 27 49 721

Malaysia

Rothschild Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Letter Box No 42,29th Floor
BN Tower; 10, Jalan P Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
Telephone +403 2687 0966
Facsimile +603 2070 1001

México

Rothschild (México) SA de CV

Campos Elseos 345-8° piso, Polanco
CP 11550 Mexico DF Mexico
Telephone +52 55 5327 1450
Facsiumule +52 55 5327 1485

Netherlands

Rothschild Europe BY

Appollolaan 133-135

1077 AR Amsterdam The Netherlands
Telephone +31 (0)20 570 2916
Facsimile +31 (0)20 570 2501




Group directory

Philippines

Rothschild (Singapore) Ltd

Phiippine Representative Office

Unit 1404 Ayala Tower One & Exchange Plaza
Ayala Avenue, Makati Crty

Philippines

Telephane +63 2 403 9863 to 66

Poland

RCF Polska sp.z o 0.

Warsaw Financial Centre
Emiln Plater 53

00-1 13 Warsaw, Poland
Telephone +48 22 540 6400
Facsirmile +48 22 540 6402

Portugal

Rothschild Portugal, Limitada

Calcada do Marqués de Abrantes
40-1° Esq, 1200-719 Lisbon, Portugal
Telephone +351 (0)21 397 5378
Facsimile +351 (0)21 397 5476

Russia

RCF (Russia) BY
(Representative Office)

Nowvinsky Passazh (8th Floor)
31 Nowvinsky Boulevard
123242, Moscow, Russia
Telephone +7 495 775 8221
Facsimile +7 495 775 8222

Singapore

Rothschild (Singapore) Limited

One Raifles Quay North Tower
| Raffles Quay, #10-02
Singapore 048583

Telephone +65 6535 8311
Facsimile +85 6535 8326

Rothschild Trust (Singapore) PTE Limited
Rothschild Wealth Management
(Singapore) Limited

Rothschild Bank AG

One Raffles Quay North Tower
I Raffles Quay #10-02
Singapore 048583

Telephone +65 6532 0866
Facsimile +65 6532 4166

South Africa

Rothschild (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited

3rd Floor Oxford Corner; 32a Jellicoe Avenue
Rosebank 2196 South Africa

Telephone +27 (0)1 1 428 3700

Facsimile +27 (0)1 | 447 0567

Spain

Rothschild SA

Paseo de la Castellana, 35-3°
28046 Madnd. Span
Telephone +34 91 702 2600
Facsimile +34 91 702 253

Awvigunda Diagonal, 441-3°|
08037 Barcelona, Spain
Telephone +34 93 254 7503
Facsimule +34 93 254 7504
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Sweden

Rothschild Nordic AB

Strandvagen 7A, | 14 56 Stockholm
Sweden

Telephone +46 (0)8 586 33590
Facaimile +46 (0)8 660 9791

Switzerland

Rothschild Holding AG
Rothschild Bank AG

Zollikerstrasse 181

8034 Zunch Swiizerland
Telephone +41 (0)44 384 7111
Facsimile +41 (0)44 384 7222

Rothschild Trust (Switzerland) AG

Zollikerstrasse |81

8034 Zunch Switzerland
Telephone +41 (0)44 384 7111
Facsimile +41 (0)44 384 720

Equitas SA

3 rue du Commerce

1204 Geneva, Swrzerland
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5900
Facsimile +41 (0)22 818 5901

Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG

Rothschild Concordia AG
Five Arrows Capital AG

Baarerstrasse 95, Posifach 735
8301 Zug Swatzerland
Telephone +41 {0)41 720 0680
Facsimile +41 (0)41 720 0683

RTS Geneva SA

3, rue du Commerce

1204 Geneva, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5995
Facsimile +41 (0)22 818 5302
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Turkey

Rothschild Kurumsal Finansman Hizmetler
Limited Sirket

Akmerkez Rezidans No 14 D 2
Akmerkez |5 Merkezi Yan
Nispetiye Caddesi 34340 Etler
Istanbul, Turkey

Telephone +90 212 371 0800
Facsimile +90 212 371 0809

United Arab Emirates

Rothschild Middle East Limited

PO Box 506570

Dubai International Financial Centre
Gate Precinct Bullding & Level 7
Dubar, United Arab Emirates
Telephone +571 4 428 4300
Facsimile +571 4 365 3183

Rothschild Europe BV
{Representative Office)

Office 114, Bainunah Street 34
Al Bateen PO Box 13100

Abu Ohabi United Arab Emirates
Tetephone +971 2 406 9866
Facsimile +G71 2 406 9810

Qatar

Rothschild (Qatar) LLC

PO Box 31316, Al Fardan Office Tower
Cffice 924, 8-9th Floor, West Bay
Doha Qatar United Arab Emirates
Telephone +974 410 1680

Facsimile +974 410 1500
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United Kingdom

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

New Court, 5t. Swthins Lane
London EC4AN BAL, UK
Telephone +44 ()20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7929 1643

B2 King Street

Manchester M2 4WQ, UK
Telephone +44 (0) 141 827 3800
Facsimile +44 (0) 161 835 3789

67 Temple Row

Birmingham B2 5LS, UK
Telephone +44 (0)121 600 5252
Facsimile +44 (0)121 643 7207

I Park Row

Leeds LS1 5NR, LUK

Telephone +44 (0)113 200 (900
Facsirmile +44 (0) 113 243 4507

Rothschild Trust Corporation Limited

New Court, 5t. Swithin’s Lane
London EC4N BAL, UK
Tetephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7929 5239

Rothschild Wealth Management (UK) Limited

New Court, St. Swithin's Lane
London EC4N 8AL, UK
Telephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7280 1567

Five Arrows Leasing Group Limited

Heron House 5 Heron Square
Richmond-upon-Thames

Surrey TW9 |EL, UK

Telephone +44 (0)20 8334 3%00
Facsimile +44 (0)20 8332 1636

United States

Rothschild North Amenica Inc
Rothschild Inc
Rothschild Asset Management Inc

1251 Avenue of the Arericas

51st Floor, New York, NY 10020 USA
Telephone + 1 (0)212 403 3500
Facsimile +1 (0)212 403 3501

Rothschild Inc

1101 Connecticut Avenue NwV

Suite 700 Washington DC 20036, USA
Tetephone + | (0)202 842 | 660
Facsimile +1 (0)202 862 1699

5 Houston Center

Suite 1825 1401 McKinney Street
Houston USATX 77010
Telephone +1 (0)713 231 1220
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